A Report on Research Sponsored by NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION (ASRA) Grant No. ENV77-15333

> STRUCTURAL WALLS IN EARTHQUAKE-RESISTANT BUILDINGS

Dynamic Analysis of Isolated Structural Walls

REPRESENTATIVE LOADING HISTORY

by

Arnaldo T. Derecho Mohammad Iqbal Satyendra K. Ghosh Mark Fintel W. Gene Corley

Submitted by RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CONSTRUCTION TECHNOLOGY LABORATORIES PORTLAND CEMENT ASSOCIATION 5420 Old Orchard Road Skokie, Illinois 60077

August 1978

Any opinions, findings, conclusions or recommendations expressed in this publication are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the views of the National Science Foundation.

50272-101	·					
REPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE	1_REPORT NO. NSF/RA-780255		2.	3. Recipient's A	ccession No.	
4. Title and Subtitle Structural Walls in Earthquake-Resistant Buildings, Dynamic					5. Report Date August 1978	
Analysis of Isolat History, Final Rep	ed Structural Wa port	lls - Represe	ntative Loading	6.		
7. Author(s) A. T. Dowocho, M. Ighal, S. K. Chosh at al				8. Performing C PCA Se	Prganization Rept. No. 7	
9. Performing Organization Name and Address					k/Work Unit No.	
Portland Cement Association 5420 Old Orchard Road				11. Contract(C)	or Grant(G) No.	
Skokie, Illinois	60077			(C)		
12. Soonsoring Organization Name	and Address			(G) ENV7715	333	
Applied Science and National Science E	d Research applic	ations (ASRA)		Final		
1800 G Street, N.W.				<u> </u>	1978	
Washington, DC 20550				<u> </u>		
An analytical inv	estigation attemp	ts to estimat	e the maximum	forces and	l deformations	
that can reasonab	ly be expected in	critical rec	ions of struct	ural walls	subjected to	
strong ground mot representative loa	ion. This docume ading history" wh	ich can be u	ed in testing	isolated s	structural	
wall specimens un	der slowly revers	ing loads.)ne hundred and	l seventy r	rotational examined	
The representative loading history is described in terms of the magnitude of the						
largest rotational deformation that can reasonably be expected in the hinging region of isolated walls, the total number of cycles of such large ramplitude deformations						
and the sequence	in which these la	rge-amplitud	deformations	occur rela	ative to	
deformations of lesser amplitude. Also considered are the forces (moments and shears) that can accompany these deformations. For the isolated walls considered in						
this study, the maximum number of large-amplitude cycles that can reasonably be						
expected for a 20-second duration of strong ground motion is six. A significant result is the fact that the first large-amplitude cycle of deformation can occur						
early in the resp	onse, with hardly	/ any inelast	ic cycle preced	ling it.		
17 Document Analysis a Docoria	tors					
Earthquakes		Seismic_wave	s Dy	/namic res	oonse	
Earth movements Critical frequencies D			quencies Dy ria	/namic str	uctural analysis	
						
b. Identifiers/Open-Ended Term	s					
c. COSATI Field/Group 18. Availability Statement			19. Security Class (Thi	s Report)	21. No. of Pages	
NTIS					139 22 Prime	
			zu. Security Class (Thi	s rage)	PC-AOTIMF-AOI	
(See ANSI-233.18)		See Instructions on Re	verse		(Formerly NTIS-35)	

.

1-R

.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

•

		Page No.
SYNOPSIS		ii
BACKGROUND		1
INTRODUCTION		6
DESCRIPTION OF DATA		9
	Parameters Represented	
	Basic Data	
ANALYSIS	OF DATA	13
	Maximum Amplitude of Rotational Deformation and Accompanying Shears	
	Shear Stress Levels	
	Number of Cycles of Large Amplitude Corresponding to 20 Seconds of Strong Ground Motion	
	Sequence of Large-Amplitude Cycles	
REPRESEN	28	
	Number of Fully-Reversed Large Amplitude Cycles and Sequence	
	Maximum Rotation, θ_{max} , and Maximum Shear	
COMMENTS	ON CHARACTER OF SHEAR LOADING	32
SUMMARY	35	
REFERENCES		40
TABLES		43
FIGURES	48	
APPENDIX	A	84

SYNOPSIS

Although structural walls have a long history of satisfactory use in stiffening buildings against wind, there is insufficient information on their behavior under strong earthquakes. Observations of the performance of buildings during recent earthquakes have demonstrated the superior performance of buildings stiffened by properly proportioned and designed structural walls - from the point of view of safety and especially from the standpoint of damage control.

The primary objective of the analytical investigation, of which the work reported here is a part, is the estimation of the maximum forces and deformations that can reasonably be expected in critical regions of structural walls subjected to strong ground motion. The results of the analytical investigation, when correlated with data from the concurrent experimental program, will form the basis for the design procedure to be developed as the ultimate objective of the overall investigation.

This is the fourth part of the report on the analytical investigation. It deals mainly with the qualitative description of "a representative loading history" which can be used in testing isolated structural wall specimens under slowly reversing loads. A total of 170 rotational response histories, representing a broad range of parameter values, are examined. The representative loading history is described in terms of the magnitude of the largest rotational deformation that can rea-

-ii-

sonably be expected in the hinging region of isolated walls, the total number of cycles of such large-amplitude deformations and the sequence in which these large-amplitude deformations occur relative to deformations of lesser amplitude. Also considered are the forces (moments and shears) that can accompany these deformations.

It is shown that, for the isolated walls considered in this study, the maximum number of large-amplitude cycles that can reasonably be expected for a 20-second duration of strong ground motion is six. A significant result is the fact that the first large-amplitude cycle of deformation can occur early in the response, with hardly any inelastic cycle preceding it.

·

Dynamic Analysis Of Isolated Structural Walls

REPRESENTATIVE LOADING HISTORY

by

A. T. Derecho⁽¹⁾, M. Iqbal⁽²⁾, S. K. Ghosh⁽³⁾ M. Fintel⁽⁴⁾, W. G. Corley⁽⁵⁾

BACKGROUND

Although structural walls (shear walls)* have a long history of satisfactory use in stiffening multistory buildings against wind, not enough information is available on the behavior of such elements under strong earthquake conditions.

Observations of the performance of buildings subjected to earthquakes during the past decade have focused attention on the need to minimize damage in addition to ensuring the general safety of buildings during strong earthquakes. The need to control damage to both structural and nonstructural components during earthquakes becomes particularly important in hospitals and other facilities which must continue operation following a major disaster. Damage control, in addition to life safety, is also economically desirable in tall buildings designed for residen-

-1--

⁽¹⁾Manager, Structural Analytical Section, Engineering Development Department, (2)Structural Engineer, Structural Analytical Section, Engineering Development Department, (3)Senior Structural Engineer, Advanced Engineering Services Department, (4)Director, Advanced Engineering Services Department, and (5)Director, Engineering Development Department.

^{*}In conformity with the nomenclature adopted by the Applied Technology Council⁽¹⁾ and in the forthcoming revised edition of Appendix A to ACI 318-77, Building Code Requirements for Reinforced Concrete⁽²⁾, the term "structural wall" is used in place of "shear wall".

tial and commercial occupancy, since the nonstructural components in such buildings usually account for 60 to 80 percent of the total cost.

There is little doubt that structural walls offer an efficient way to stiffen a building against lateral loads. When proportioned so that they possess adequate lateral stiffness to reduce interstory distortions due to earthquake-induced motions, walls effectively reduce the likelihood of damage to the nonstructural elements in a building. When used with rigid frames, walls form a structural system that combines the gravity-loadcarrying efficiency of the rigid frame with the lateral-loadresisting efficiency of the structural wall.

Observations of the comparative performance of rigid frame buildings and buildings stiffened by structural walls during recent earthquakes, (3,4,5) have clearly demonstrated the superior performance of buildings stiffened by properly proportioned and designed structural walls, from the point of view of safety and especially from the standpoint of damage control.

The need to minimize damage during strong earthquakes, in addition to the primary requirement of life safety (i.e., no collapse), clearly imposes more stringent requirements on the design of structures. This need to minimize damage provided the impetus for a closer examination of the structural wall as an earthquake-resisting element. Among the more immediate questions to be answered before a rational design procedure can be developed are:

-2-

- 1. What magnitudes of deformation and associated forces can reasonably be expected at critical regions of structural walls corresponding to specific combinations of structural and ground motion parameters? How many cycles of large deformation can be expected in critical regions of walls under earthquakes of average duration?
- 2. What stiffness and strength should structural walls in typical building configurations have relative to the expected ground motion in order to limit the deformations to acceptable levels?
- 3. What design and detailing requirements must be met to provide walls with the strength and deformation capacities indicated by analysis?

The combined analytical and experimental investigation, of which this study is a part, was undertaken to provide answers to the above questions. The ultimate objective of the overall investigation is the development of practical and reliable design procedures for earthquake-resistant structural walls and wall systems.

The analytical program undertaken to accomplish part of the desired objective consists of the following steps:

(a) Characterization of input motions in terms of the significant parameters to enable the calculation of critical or 'near-maximum' response using a minimum number of input motions⁽⁶⁾.

- (b) Determination of the relative influence of the various structural and ground motion parameters on dynamic structural response through parametric studies⁽⁷⁾. The purpose of this study is to identify the most significant variables.
- (c) Calculation of estimates of strength and deformation <u>demands</u> in critical regions of structural walls as affected by the significant parameters determined in Step (b). A number of input accelerograms chosen on the basis of information developed in Steps (a) and (b) are used ⁽⁸⁾.
- (d) Development of procedure for determining design force levels⁽⁸⁾ by correlating the stiffness, strength and deformation <u>demands</u> obtained in Step (c) with the corresponding <u>capacities</u> determined from the concurrent experimental program⁽⁹⁾.

The first phase of this investigation is concerned mainly with isolated structural walls. A detailed consideration of the dynamic response of frame-wall and coupled wall structures is planned for the subsequent phases of the investigation.

This is the fourth part of the report on the analytical investigation. It describes a procedure for defining a "representative loading history" which can be used in testing laboratory specimens under slowly reversing loads to simulate earthquake loading. The representative loading history, for a particular set of structural and ground motion parameters, is described in terms of the magnitude of the largest rotational deformation that can reasonably be expected in the hinging

-4-

region, the total number of cycles of such large-amplitude deformations and the sequence in which these large-amplitude deformations occur relative to deformations of lesser amplitude. Also considered are the forces (moments and shears) that can accompany these deformations. To determine the number and sequence of large-amplitude cycles, a total of 170 rotational response histories of the critical region at the base of isolated structural walls, were examined. These represent a broad range of parameter values.

The first part of the report on the analytical investigation⁽⁶⁾ dealt mainly with the characterization of input motions in terms of duration, intensity and frequency content, with particular regard to the effects of these on dynamic inelastic response. The second part of the report⁽⁷⁾ discussed the results of parametric studies designed to isolate the most significant structural and ground motion parameters. A procedure for determining design force levels for isolated structural walls is developed in the third part of the report on the analytical investigation⁽⁸⁾.

-5-

INTRODUCTION

A major objective of the analytical investigation is the determination of the force and deformation demands in structures corresponding to particular combinations of the significant structural and ground motion parameters. Since design attention will have to be focused on the critically stressed regions in structures, these demands will have to be defined mainly in relation to the hinging regions in elements. A complete characterization of these demands would include not only the maximum amplitude but also the number of large-amplitude cycles that can reasonably be expected, the sequence of such large-amplitude cycles relative to cycles of lesser amplitude, and associated forces. The development of a "representative loading history" for critical regions in structures which can be used in testing large-size specimens under slowly applied reversing loads is one of the more important results that can be obtained from dynamic inelastic analyses.

In developing a procedure for determining design force levels discussed in Ref. 8, the correlation between calculated demands and measured capacities is based on critical (maximum) values. It was implicitly assumed, in undertaking the correlation, that the loading program used in the laboratory to obtain capacity values was either representative of or more conservative than the loading associated with dynamic response to strong ground motion. The loading program used in testing the first series of isolated wall specimens was characterized by loading cycles of progressively increasing amplitude, with the moment,

-6-

shear and rotation all in phase. This type of loading has been commonly used (9-29) to simulate earthquake loading conditions.

A preliminary examination of response histories indicated, however, that the sequence of load cycles used in this loading program was not typical of the deformation history of the hinging region in isolated walls subjected to strong ground motion. In undertaking the correlation, it was thus necessary to assume that any difference between this loading and earthquake loading had no significant effect on the behavior of the isolated wall specimens. This assumption relates mainly to the number of large-amplitude deformation cycles and the sequence in which these cycles are applied to a specimen. It is worth noting that the cumulative measures of deformation discussed in Ref. 8* reflect, to some degree, the number of cycles of significant amplitude. However, they do not provide a definite indication of the number of such large-amplitude deformations which can be used as a basis for laboratory tests.

In view of the importance of ensuring that the loading program used in laboratory tests represent realistic loading conditions, it was decided early in the investigation to develop a representative loading history. Such a loading history, to be used in the laboratory testing of isolated structural walls under slowly reversing loads, would have to be based on analytical dynamic response data.

-7-

^{*}i.e. cumulative rotational ductility and cumulative rotational energy.

The principal objective of this study is the characterization of the typical response history of the critical region at the base of isolated structural walls in quantitative terms, particularly as these affect structural behavior. The deformation of major interest is the total rotation occurring in the hinging region of walls. An adequate characterization of the deformation history will have to include the following:

- (1) The maximum amplitude of deformation that can be expected for a particular combination of structure period and yield level and earthquake intensity.
- (2) The number of such large-amplitude cycles that can be expected for a reasonable duration of the ground motion; and
- (3) The sequence of such large-amplitude cycles relative to cycles of lesser amplitude.

Of equal importance as the deformation history are the accompanying forces, i.e., moments and shears, and their variation relative to the deformation.

DESCRIPTION OF DATA

Parameters Represented

The raw data used for this study include results of dynamic response analyses undertaken in connection with the work reported in Refs. 7 and 8.

The dynamic response data used correspond to multistory isolated structural walls ranging from 10 to 40 stories in height and subjected to 10 different input motions. Figure 1 shows the type of structure considered and the lumped 12-mass model used in the analysis of 20-story walls. Note that the masses are spaced closer together near the base of the model. This was done in order to obtain a better indication of the deformation in the critical region near the base. Corresponding models for the 10-, 30- and 40- story walls are shown in Fig. 2.

Table 1 gives the ranges of values of the different structural parameters characterizing the isolated wall models as well as the ground motion parameters used in this study. A detailed description of these parameter variations is given in Refs. 7 and 8.

The basic moment-rotation relationship assumed for the hinging regions in the walls is a bilinear idealization of the primary curve typical of reinforced concrete structures. The hysteresis loop is characterized by unloading and reloading branches whose slopes decrease for response cycles subsequent to yield. This is shown in Fig. 3a, where the unloading and reloading and reloading and reloading branches are denoted by α and β , respectively. An

-9-

example of a moment-rotation loop for an isolated wall with fundamental period, $T_1 = 1.4 \text{ sec.}, \alpha = 0.10$, and $\beta = 0$, is shown in Fig. 3b.

Of the ten different input motions used, six were of 10-second duration. The other four had 20-second durations. These were synthesized by repeating the first 10-second strongmotion portion of four records. In all cases, the input motion was assumed applied directly to the base of the structure.

The six 10-second accelerograms used for most of the analyses are shown in Fig. 4. These include the first 10 seconds of five recorded motions, as digitized at the California Institute of Technology (30) and one artificially generated accelerogram obtained by using the program described in Ref. 31. The accelerograms shown have been normalized with respect to intensity so that the spectrum intensity* of each one is equal to 1.5 times the spectrum intensity corresponding to the first 10 seconds of the N-S component of the 1940 El Centro record (denoted The 5%-damped velocity response spectra for here by SI_{ref}). these six accelerograms are shown in Fig. 5. The four 20-second composite accelerograms used are shown in Fig. 6, and the corresponding 5%-damped velocity response spectra are shown in Fig. 7. The portions of each record used for the second ten seconds of the composite accelerograms are indicated in Table 2. Also shown in Table 2 are the corresponding 5%-damped spectrum intensities.

-10-

^{*}Spectrum intensity - defined as the area under the relative velocity response spectrum (for a single-degree-of-freedom system) corresponding to the first 10 seconds of ground motion, between periods 0.1 and 3.0 seconds.

The dynamic inelastic analyses were carried out using the computer program DRAIN-2D⁽³²⁾ developed at the University of California, Berkeley, as modified at the Portland Cement Association⁽³³⁾.

Basic Data

Of the information necessary to describe a loading history for a particular set of structural and ground motion parameters, the maximum amplitude of deformation and the accompanying shears and moments are discussed in detail in Ref. 8. Some 300 analyses were used as bases for these. The major question considered here concerns the number of large-amplitude cycles of deformation in the hinging region as well as the sequence of such large-amplitude cycles relative to cycles of lesser amplitude.

The data considered consist of response history plots of the total rotation in the hinging region at the base of each wall. The rotational deformation in the hinging region is taken as equal to the nodal rotation at a height above the base representing the hinging length, as shown in Fig. 8.

Rotation histories for nodes at the first and second floor levels of a particular 20-story wall subjected to the first 10 seconds of the E-W component of the 1940 El Centro record are shown in Fig. 9. Note the similarity in shape between the response history curves for nodes located at the first and second floor levels. This is generally true for nodes near the base of the wall and is due mainly to the predominance of the fundamen-

-11-

tal mode of response. Also shown in this figure is the horizontal displacement history for the floor at midheight.

Examples of the rotational response histories considered in this investigation are shown in Appendix A. These plots were examined to determine the number and sequence of such largeamplitude cycles. For this particular purpose, the rotation history of any node near the base of the wall will provide essentially the same information with respect to number of cycles and sequence. The plots shown in Appendix A all correspond to the node nearest to the base in the models of Fig. 2.

ANALYSIS OF DATA

Maximum Amplitude of Rotational Deformation and Accompanying Shears

In Ref. 8, the critical value of rotational ductility demand is obtained as a function of the fundamental period and the flexural yield level, for selected values of ground motion intensity and wall height. Plots such as Fig. 10 give the rotational ductility, μ_r , that has to be developed at the base of an isolated wall of a particular height, fundamental period, T_1 , and flexural yield level, M_y , when subjected to an input motion of specific intensity.

The tendency of the ductility demand to decrease with an increase in the assumed hinging length, as indicated in Fig. 11, should be noted. This figure shows the calculated ductility ratios based on nodal rotations at the first and second floor levels for 20-story walls, both divided by the corresponding value at the second floor level (Fig. 1). The data points are shown connected by straight lines, on the assumption of a linear variation of the ratio between the two assumed hinging lengths from 20.75 ft to 12.0 ft. Results of experiments on isolated walls (9,36) suggest a hinging length, i.e., the length over which most of the inelastic deformation in a member occurs, equal to the width of the wall.

Another important set of results of the study reported in Ref. 8 are plots, such as shown in Fig. 12, giving the critical shear at the base of isolated walls as a function of T_1 and M_v , for particular values of the input motion intensity.

-13-

Since the rotational ductility of a reinforced concrete wall or other element can be significantly affected by shear, this factor has to be considered in developing a loading program. It will be noted in Fig. 12 that the critical shear at the base increases with increasing yield level, M_y , but does not vary significantly with changing values of the fundamental period, T_1 .

Plots of critical rotational ductility demand and shears for other wall heights are also shown in Figs. 10b,c,d and 12b,c,d. All these plots correspond to a ground motion intensity of 1.5 $\text{SI}_{\text{ref.}}$ Response data for input motion intensities of 0.75 SI_{ref} and 1.0 SI_{ref} have also been generated⁽⁸⁾.

The maximum amplitude of deformation and the accompanying shears to be used in any loading program will depend on the range of values of the structure period, yield level, height and earthquake intensity represented by the loading program. It is evident from the charts shown in Figs. 10 and 12 that the greater the ductility demand used in a loading program, the broader the range of parameter combinations that can be considered as 'represented' by the test. In Fig. 10, for example, a maximum loading amplitude corresponding to a rotational ductility ratio of 5, would represent the demand on all 20-story isolated walls having combinations of the fundamental period, T_1 , and yield level, M_y , for which the associated curves lie below the horizontal line $\mu_r = 5$.

It will be noted from Figs. 10 and 12 that while an increase in yield level generally results in a decrease in ductility demand, it is also accompanied by an increase in the

-14-

maximum shear force. Experiments^(9,36) have indicated that the presence of high shears can limit the rotational capacity (or ductility) of the hinging region in walls subjected to reversed loading.

<u>Shear Stress Levels</u>. In determining the magnitude of the rotational deformation requirements associated with response to strong ground motions, it is important to ascertain the magnitude of the accompanying shear forces. These can have a significant effect on both the flexural strength and deformation capacity of reinforced concrete elements. Results of experiments on beams (16,17) and walls (9,10,34,36) have clearly demonstrated the major influence that shear can have on the behavior of reinforced concrete structures. This is particularly true of structures subjected to reversed loading with deformations well into the inelastic range.

An indication of the level of the maximum nominal shear stress that can be expected for earthquakes with intensities equal to 1.5 (SI_{ref}), is given in Tables 3a and 3b. Table 3a, for example, shows the maximum nominal shear stress corresponding to rectangular wall sections of various heights. The walls considered were chosen such that their initial fundamental period would each be equal to 0.6 N, where N is the number of stories in the building. The section dimensions shown in the table were calculated on the basis of the gross areas of the sections. The wall stiffnesses corresponding to each value of the fundamental period were determined using the curves of Fig. 13. Flexural yield level (M_v) values were chosen for each

-15-

section corresponding to a rotational ductility demand at the base equal to 4.0. For this purpose, curves such as shown in Fig. 14 (based on Fig. 10), determined on the basis of dynamic inelastic analyses⁽⁸⁾, were used. The critical shear values corresponding to each structure were obtained from Fig. 15 (based on Fig. 12), also developed in Ref. 8. Similar data for flanged sections are shown in Table 3b.

Tables 3a and 3b show the maximum nominal dynamic shear stress in terms of $\sqrt{f'_C}$ for f'_C = 4000 psi and f'_C = 6000 psi.

The results shown in these tables indicate that for the range of fundamental period and ductility demand considered, maximum nominal dynamic shear stress values in the range of $4.0 \sqrt{f_c}$ to $7.0 \sqrt{f_c}$ can be expected.

It is important to note, however, that there is a significant difference between the dynamic shear force and the shear normally associated with quasi-static laboratory tests to simulate earthquake loading. The major difference lies in the variation of the shear force with time, particularly in relation to the accompanying moment and rotation. This is discussed in detail under "Comments on Character of Shear Loading."

Number of Cycles of Large Amplitude Corresponding to 20 Seconds of Strong Ground Motion

As discussed in Ref. 6, a duration of 20 seconds of the strong-motion portion of an accelerogram should provide reasonably conservative estimates of cumulative deformation requirements. This observation applies similarly to the number of large-amplitude cycles of response. Since the number of ap-

-16-

plications of reversed cycles of loading can significantly affect the behavior of reinforced concrete elements, a reliable assessment of this aspect of the deformation demand is important.

To estimate the number of large-amplitude cycles of response to strong ground motion, response history plots of the nodal rotations of the first two nodes closest to the base, as shown in Fig. 2 were prepared and examined. An example of these response plots is shown in Fig. 9. Since the response of the wall is dominated by the first or fundamental mode, in which all parts of the wall remain on the same side of the original vertical position at any instant, the calculated rotations of nodes near the base represent essentially the total rotations occurring in the segments of wall between the base and the particular nodes (Fig. 8). Because the response histories for the two nodes closest to the base are generally similar and yield essentially the same information with respect to number of cycles of response, as shown in Fig. 9, only the response of the node closest to the base was considered in detail. Plots of rotation history for the node closest to the base for some 170 cases considered in Refs. 7 and 8 were examined. The cases considered represent a broad range of values of the significant structural and ground motion parameters, as indicated in Table Figure 15 shows examples of rotational response history 1. The nodal rotations in these plots have been normalized plots. by dividing these by the corresponding yield rotations. Α

-17-

number of normalized rotation history plots representing samples from the 170 cases considered have been assembled in Appendix A.

Most of the analyses, and hence response plots, were done using a 10-second duration of the input motion. However, to allow for motions of longer duration, particularly as these affect cumulative response quantities such as the number of large-amplitude cycles, a few analyses were performed using 20-second composite accelerograms. As mentioned earlier, these accelerograms were synthesized from the same records that provided the 10-second motions of Fig. 4. This was done by appending to the latter another 10 seconds of the strong-motion portion of the corresponding accelerogram. The four composite accelerograms used in this study are shown in Fig. 6. The corresponding 5%-damped velocity response spectra are shown in Fig. 7. The portion of each record used for the second ten seconds of the composite accelerograms is indicated in Table 2. Also shown in Table 2 are the corresponding calculated 5%-damped spectrum intensities.

Comparison of the cumulative measures of deformation for the 20-second analyses and the 10-second analyses indicated that a good estimate of the 20-second cumulative rotational ductility could be obtained from 10-second analyses by multiplying the results of the latter by a factor of 2.0. (9)

Figure 16 shows that when the response is inelastic, the amplitude of deformation rarely remains the same for both halfcycles of a response cycle. In recognition of this fact and to

-18-

have a basis for classifying response cycles according to their relative severity, the following definitions were introduced:

Relative Amplitude of Peaks

- a. A "large-amplitude" peak is an inelastic half-cycle of deformation having a magnitude between 0.75 and 1.0 of the corresponding calculated maximum amplitude;
- b. A "moderate-amplitude" peak is a deformation between
 0.50 and 0.75 of the corresponding maximum.

Large-Amplitude Cycles:

- a. "Fully reversed" cycles are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one large-amplitude peak and the other peak, on reversal, of at least moderate amplitude. This is illustrated in Fig. 16a;
- b. "Partially reversed" cycles are cycles with one largeamplitude peak and the other 0.50 or less of the calculated maximum amplitude. This is illustrated in Fig. 16b.

"Moderate" amplitude cycles are those with one peak value between 0.50 and 0.75 of the maximum (i.e., moderate amplitude) and the other 0.50 or less.

In the plots of nodal rotation history, shown in Fig. 15 and Appendix A, the rotations have been normalized by dividing these by the corresponding nodal rotation when yielding first occurred at the base. Thus, the two horizontal dotted lines on each side of the zero axis (i.e., through ordinates +1.0 and -1.0) represent the initial yield rotation for all cases. Rotations ex-

-19-

ceeding the initial yield values on each side of the zero axis were considered inelastic.

The procedure used in determining the number of fully reversed and partially reversed large-amplitude cycles can best be explained with reference to a particular nodal rotation history, such as shown in Fig. 17. In this figure, the maximum calculated amplitude of deformation is denoted by $\theta_{\rm max}$. A deformation cycle in which one peak was inelastic (either of large or moderate amplitude) and the other less than the yield amplitude was counted as 1/2 of an inelastic cycle. A few cases where the maximum amplitude was only slightly greater than the yield amplitude or cases of cycles in which both peaks were elastic (i.e., less than the yield amplitude) but which would otherwise qualify as either large or moderate amplitude peaks relative to the maximum, were also counted as 1/2 of an inelastic cycle.

Results of the examination of response histories to determine the number of large-amplitude cycles, etc. are listed in Table A-1 of Appendix A. Included in the tabulation are the maximum amplitude of deformation, the total number of large and moderate amplitude peaks, the number of fully reversed and partially reversed cycles and the total number of inelastic cycles. The "Total No. of Inelastic Cycles" listed in the last column of Table A-1 include both "large-amplitude" and "moderateamplitude" cycles.

Figure 18a shows a histogram indicating the distribution of cases, in terms of the percentage of the total number con-

-20-

sidered, having a specific number of fully reversed cycles. Another way of presenting the data of Fig. 18a is the percentage exceedance plot shown in Fig. 18b, which is the complement of the associated cumulative frequency plot. This plot gives the percentage of the total number of cases having fully reversed cycles exceeding a specific number (as indicated in the abscissa).

It is significant to note in Fig. 18 that for the broad range of parameter values represented, the number of fully reversed <u>cycles</u> corresponding to 20 seconds of strong ground motion rarely exceeds six. Figure 18b indicates that for more than 95% of the cases considered, the number of fully reversed large-amplitude cycles of response is less than 4.

Histograms and percentage exceedance plots for the number of "large-amplitude" peaks (i.e., half cycles) and the total number of inelastic cycles (not necessarily all "large-amplitude" as defined above) are given in Figs. 19 and 20, respectively. These figures indicate that for the range of parameter values considered, both the number of large-amplitude <u>peaks</u> and the total number of inelastic cycles of response under a 20-second strong motion excitation rarely exceed ten. Figure 20b also indicates that for more than 95% of the cases considered, the number of inelastic cycles of response, corresponding to 20 seconds of strong ground motion, is less than eight.

The values plotted in Fig. 18 through 20 correspond to a 20-second duration of strong ground motion. As mentioned, most

-21-

of the analyses used only 10 seconds of input motion. The results of these 10-second analyses (i. e., those relating to cumulative measures of deformation) were then multiplied by 2.0 to obtain values for the 20-second input motions. The factor of 2.0 was based on a comparison (8) of the cumulative rotational ductility for a limited number of cases analyzed using the 20-second composite accelerograms shown in Fig. 6, with the corresponding 10-second values. Table 4, from Ref. 8, shows the average ratios of the cumulative cyclic rotational ductility and the cumulative rotational energy (these terms are defined in Fig. 21) associated with the 20-second composite accelerograms to the corresponding 10-second results. Ratios for nodal rotations at the first and second floor levels are listed in Table 4. The ratios listed represent the average of 12 cases, all for 20-story walls, with fundamental periods ranging from 0.8 sec. to 2.4 sec. and yield levels from 500,000 to 1,500,000 in.-kips.

A total of some 170 cases were considered in preparing Figs. 18 through 20. These represent fundamental period values from 0.5 to 3.0 seconds, yield levels from 300,000 to 2,500,000 in.-kips and wall heights from 10 to 40 stories. Six input motions with intensities varying from 0.75 to 1.5 of the reference intensity, SI_{ref.} were considered.

Sequence of Large-Amplitude Cycles

To obtain detailed data on specimen behavior for design applications, the loading program most commonly used in tests of large-size specimens under slowly reversed loads consists of deformation cycles of progressively increasing amplitudes until

-22-

failure occurs (9-29). This type of loading program is shown schematically in Fig. 22. The maximum forces and deformations sustained are then noted as indicating capacity. It has been suggested by Bertero (37-38) that such a loading program may not be as conservative as a program in which the peak deformation is imposed early in the test.

An examination of response histories of nodal rotations near the base of isolated walls indicates that in many cases, the maximum amplitude, or an amplitude of deformation close to the maximum, occurs early in the response, with hardly any inelastic cycle preceding it. Large-amplitude cycles also occur later in the response. This is evident in Fig. 15, which shows nodal rotation histories for walls having different fundamental periods, yield levels and stiffness degrading characteristics subjected to the E-W component of the 1940 El Centro record. Because this observed early occurrence of the maximum amplitude cycle differs from the usual sequence of loading, it was decided to examine the response histories obtained in the course of this investigation⁽⁸⁾ in greater detail. Rotation histories were obtained for the two nodes closest to the base of the models used, as well as the horizontal displacement histories of nodes located at or near midheight of the walls. Figure 9 shows a plot of all three response quantities for a particular case. Since the time variation of these three response quantities are very similar, it was decided to consider in detail only the rotation history of the node closest to the base.

-23-

In examining the sequence of large-amplitude cycles, attention was focused on the first response peak of large amplitude, i.e., with a value between 0.75 and 1.0 of the calculated maximum. Particular emphasis was placed on the number and relative magnitude of the inelastic cycles preceding this large-amplitude peak.

For the purpose of this examination, the deformation cycles preceding the first large-amplitude peak are referred to as "B cycles". "Fully reversed cycles", in relation to B-cycles, are defined as complete cycles (+ and -) with the amplitude of the greater peak denoted by B and the other, on reversal, between 0.5 and 1.0 of B. "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one peak amplitude equal to at least 0.75 of B and the other 0.5 or less of B.

The results of this examination are listed in Tables A5 through A8 for the 170 cases considered. Data on "fully reversed" and "partially reversed" inelastic B-cycles preceding the first large-amplitude response peak are listed under the last two columns of these tables.

For the purpose of determining the number of fully reversed and partially reversed inelastic B-cycles, a cycle where one peak was inelastic and the reverse cycle was elastic (i.e., with amplitude less than the initial yield rotation) was considered as equivalent to one-half of an inelastic cycle. Cycles where both peaks were elastic were not counted. However, even when the only B-cycles occurring were all elastic (i. e., No. of inelastic B-cycles = 0), the ratio of the amplitudes, B/A,

-24-

was still noted. In this case, B is the largest applicable amplitude. In Fig. 23 for example, the ratio of the amplitude, B, of the inelastic cycle preceding the first large-amplitude peak, A (here, A is equal to the maximum), is $3\theta_y/7\theta_y = 0.43$. In this case, the number of fully reversed B-cycles is zero and of partially reversed cycles is 1/2, since the B-cycle does not reverse itself. It will be noted in Tables A5 through A8 that in most of the cases considered, there are no fully reversed inelastic B-cycles.

The data on number of inelastic B-cycles listed in Tables A5 through A8 are summarized in Fig. 24. The abscissa in Fig. 25 indicates the sum of fully reversed and partially reversed inelastic cycles noted in the last two columns of Table A5 through A8. In Fig. 24, data points along the vertical line corresponding to zero inelastic B-cycles represent cases where the largest amplitude B-half cycle was elastic. The figure shows that in the majority of cases, there are no inelastic cycles preceding the first large-amplitude response peak. In a number of cases, mainly for those where the first large-amplitude peak, A, is itself close to the yield amplitude, (indicating low ductility demands), the ratio B/A exceeds 0.50.

The information relating to the number of inelastic B-cycles preceding the first large-amplitude peak in Fig. 24 has been replotted in the form of a histogram in Fig. 25. The important thing to note in Figs. 24 and 25, with particular reference to the question of sequence of load cycles, is that in many instances, the maximum deformation (or a deformation

-25-

close to the maximum) can occur early in the response, with hardly any inelastic cycle preceding it. Because of the probable sensitivity of structural behavior under reversed loading with high shears to the manner in which the maximum deformation is approached, i.e., whether through progressively increasing amplitudes of loading or by a relatively sudden increase to the maximum, this observation is significant and should be considered if a realistic loading program is to be developed.

Preliminary results of tests at PCA to verify the effect of sequence of loading $(^{36})$ indicate that under shearing stresses of the order of 8 $\sqrt{f_c}$ or greater, a loading program where the maximum deformation is imposed early in the test can be more severe than when the loading is progressively increased to the maximum.

The tests involved two companion isolated wall specimens. The first of these was loaded following the usual program of progressively increasing amplitudes of deformation as shown in Fig. 26a and 26b. The second, essentially identical specimen, was loaded using a program based on the results of this study as shown in Fig. 26c and 26d. For this specimen, the maximum deformation was imposed early in the test, with only one small inelastic cycle preceding it.

Results indicate that the first specimen could sustain a particular maximum deformation through at least three cycles when this maximum deformation was imposed after a series of progressively increasing load cycles. However, the second,

-26-
essentially identical, specimen could not sustain the same maximum deformation through three cycles when the maximum deformation was applied early. Details of the tests are described in Ref. 36. While no definite conclusions can be drawn on the basis of a comparison of only two specimens, this subject is certainly one that merits further investigation.

The observed difference in behavior between the two specimens can be explained in major part by the greater deformation capacity under the same lateral load, or the lesser stiffness, of a specimen that has been appreciably cracked and "softened" by earlier cycles of loading when compared to a "stiff" specimen that has only a few cracks. A specimen with well-distributed flexural and diagonal cracks produced by earlier cycles of loading can accommodate a particular total rotation by inelastic deformations over a longer hinging length than a specimen that has less cracking. In one case, the rotation in the critical region is spread over a longer hinging length. In the second case the inelastic rotation tends to be concentrated over a much shorter length with consequent high curvatures and strains.

-27-

REPRESENTATIVE LOADING HISTORY - AN EXAMPLE

The procedure for selecting a loading program to be used in testing isolated structural wall specimens under slowly reversed loads will be illustrated below. Such a loading can be considered as "representative" of conditions associated with structures having fundamental periods and yield levels within certain ranges when subjected to a particular ground motion intensity. The loading is representative in the sense of being as severe or more severe than the response that might be expected in a particular group of structures to the specific ground motion intensity.

Number of Fully-Reversed Large-Amplitude Cycles and Sequence

It was shown in the preceding section that for a 20-second duration of strong ground motion and a wide range of values of the fundamental period and yield level, the number of "fullyreversed" cycles of response (or loading) rarely exceeds six. The maximum total number of inelastic cycles, both large and small, is ten. For over 95% of the cases considered, the corresponding values are four and eight, respectively. Examination of a large number of response histories also showed that the occurrence of the first large-amplitude cycle very early in the response is a very strong possibility. In view of the adverse effect that early occurrence of a large-amplitude cycle can have on the behavior of reinforced concrete walls, a representative loading history for use in testing should incorporate this aspect of response.

-28-

Figure 27 shows a rotational deformation loading program for the hinging region of isolated walls incorporating aspects of response relating to number and sequence of large-amplitude cycles.

Examination of a rotation response history such as shown in Fig. 16 shows that the positive and negative peaks of any response cycle generally are not of the same amplitude. Also, the "fully-reversed" cycle as defined in this study may have the higher peak ranging from 0.75 to 1.0 of the calculated maximum deformation. The other peak, on reversal, may be anywhere between 0.50 and 1.0 of the maximum. To reflect these variations in amplitude of response cycles, the five fully-reversed cycles in Fig. 27 have been divided into three cycles with amplitudes equal to the maximum deformation and two cycles with amplitude equal to 0.80 of the maximum. The first large-amplitude cycle occurs after a single inelastic cycle with amplitude close to Smaller inelastic cycles equal to about 1.5 to 2 times yield. the yield amplitude occur between the fully-reversed largeamplitude cycles. The effect of these small-amplitude inelastic cycles on structural behavior is generally not significant (9,36). In all cases, the cycles are made up of positive and negative peaks of the same amplitude.

The loading program shown in Fig. 27 applies generally to the entire range of isolated walls considered in this study. It is important to note, however, that a particular loading history, in all its details, cannot be thought of as being

-29-

generally applicable. The actual magnitude of the maximum rotation, θ_{max} , as well as the maximum shear, will vary depending upon the combination of parameter values represented by the loading. These parameters include earthquake intensity and structure period and yield level.

Maximum Rotation, θ_{max} , and Maximum Shear

To determine the value of the rotational ductility requirement, $\mu = \theta_{max} / \theta_{yield}$, to be used in a particular loading program, a decision has to be made on the range of values of the structure period and yield level as well as the earthquake intensity represented by the test. Referring to Fig. 10, for instance, a maximum rotational ductility of 4.0 would represent or cover 20-story isolated walls with periods ranging from about 1.0 sec. or greater and yield levels of about 1,500,000 in.-kips or greater when subjected to an earthquake with intensity SI = 1.5 (SI_{ref}). Also covered are walls with periods ranging from about 1.7 sec. or greater and yield levels of 1,000,000 in.-kips or greater. Walls with $M_V = 750,000$ in.-kips will be covered by the same ductility requirement provided the period is 1.8 sec or greater. It is clear from Fig. 10 that the higher the ductility ratio used in a test, the broader the range of parameter values represented or covered by the results.

Similar observations apply to the maximum shear which should accompany the imposed deformations. Figure 12 can be used as a guide in selecting the appropriate shear force. Here again, the distinction must be made between the maximum dynamic shear and

-30-

the shear applied to specimens in quasi-static tests which is in phase with the accompanying moment and rotation. As indicated in the subsequent section on "Comments on Character of Shear Loading," some adjustment may be required in either the dynamic shears or the shear capacity obtained from quasi-static tests before a valid comparison can be made between these two quantities.

Laboratory tests using a loading program based on dynamic analysis results, such as shown in Fig. 27, with specific values of θ_{max} and the accompanying maximum shear, will have the character of proof tests. A specimen that sustains such a loading program without significant loss of strength can be said to be adequate with respect to design and details for the particular combination or range of values of the significant parameters represented by the loading program.

COMMENTS ON CHARACTER OF SHEAR LOADING

In correlating capacity values obtained from experiments with demands estimated from dynamic inelastic analyses⁽⁸⁾, it is essential that the capacity values be derived under conditions closely approximating those prevailing under dynamic conditions. This, of course, assumes that the mathematical idealization used in the dynamic analyses represents a realistic approximation of the actual structure, i.e., with the significant variables adequately modelled.

The need for close correspondence between laboratory test conditions and those obtaining under dynamic conditions is particularly important with respect to factors that have significant influence on the behavior of reinforced concrete ele-The validity of any correlation between demand as ments. determined from analysis and capacity as obtained from laboratory tests will depend on how representative the test conditions are of actual dynamic response. While there are many aspects to the problem⁽³⁸⁾, only one, related to loading history as used in quasi-static tests to simulate earthquake loading, will be discussed here. This has to do with the time variation of the shear force relative to that of the accompanying moment and rotational deformation. The question is important because of the significant influence shear can have on specimen behavior.

As far as the shear force used in tests is concerned, two aspects have to be considered. First is the magnitude of the maximum shear force. The second is its variation with time,

-32-

and particularly in relation to the accompanying moment and deformation. Most quasi-static tests that have been conducted to date have been concerned mainly with the magnitude of the expected shear forces. The loading imposed on test specimens has been characterized by the moment, shear and deformation in the critical region being all in phase. This results from the application of a single horizontal load or a series of proportionally changing horizontal loads to a specimen.

Dynamic response studies of isolated structural walls undertaken at $PCA^{(8)}$, however, indicate that the shear in the critical region at the base is more sensitive to higher mode response and thus fluctuates more rapidly with time than either the moment or the rotation. This is illustrated in Fig. 28a through 28d which show time-history plots of the shear, rotation and moment in the first story of an isolated wall subjected to four different input motions.

It is significant to note in Fig. 28 that the shear force in the critical region fluctuates more rapidly than either the moment or the rotation. The maximum shear generally acts over a shorter duration relative to the accompanying moment. In addition, the direction of the shear force reverses itself several times during a single half-cycle of moment and rotational response.

The behavior of the shears shown in Fig. 28 may be partly due to the fact that the model of the hinging region allowed yielding in flexure only, while remaining linearly inelastic with respect to shear throughout the response. Experimental studies (9,36) have shown that this is generally not the case.

-33-

The shear distortion in the hinging region can be significant and contributes appreciably to the total displacement at the $top^{(9,36)}$ even before the onset of flexural yielding. Whatever the effect of this modelling assumption may be*, it is important, in correlating experimental data on capacity with analytical data on demand, to allow for any differences in the manner in which shear is induced under dynamic response conditions and in the typical quasi-static test. It is believed that a shear force that fluctuates rapidly and reaches its peak value only for very short durations relative to the associated moment and rotation represents a less severe loading condition than one in which the shear, moment and deformation are all in phase.

The question involved here relates not only to the effects of out-of-phase forces but also possible shear strain-rate effects on the behavior of reinforced concrete members. The determination of the sensitivity of reinforced concrete member behavior to these differences in loading needs further investigation. An indication of significant effects would suggest an adjustment either in the dynamic shear demand or in the quasistatically determined shear capacity in order to allow a valid comparison.

^{*}A model which will allow yielding in shear in the hinging region, based on uncoupled behavior relative to moment, has been developed to study this and related questions concerning shear yielding.

SUMMARY

A total of 170 rotational response history plots for isolated walls, representing a broad range of structural and ground motion parameter values, were examined in this study. The primary objective of the examination was to determine the number and sequence of large-amplitude cycles of rotational response in the hinging region of isolated structural walls. Response corresponding to 20 seconds of strong ground motion is suggested as adequate for the purpose of establishing design requirements. This information is essential in developing a representative loading program for testing laboratory specimens under slowly reversed loads to simulate earthquake loading. Such a loading program can be considered as representative of the response of a particular group of structures to ground motions of specific intensity.

In addition to the number and sequence of large-amplitude cycles of rotation, other equally important parameters characterizing the response history are the magnitudes of the total rotation in the hinging region and the accompanying shear. Information on the latter two parameters has been developed in detail in Ref. 8. The relevant results have been reproduced here for completeness.

Significant observations made in this study are summarized below. These apply strictly to isolated walls having properties within the ranges indicated in Table 1.

 An estimate of the maximum amplitude of rotational deformation, i.e., rotational ductility requirement,

-35-

that can be expected for a particular earthquake intensity and combination of structure period and yield level may be obtained from charts such as shown in Figs. 10a to 10d. These charts were developed in Ref. 8. For 20-story structural walls with fundamental period of 0.8 sec. or greater, for example, a maximum ductility requirement of about 5 is indicated provided the yield level at least 1,500,000 in.-kips (170,000 kN·m).

2. The maximum dynamic shears corresponding to a particular combination of earthquake intensity and structural parameters (i.e., period and yield level) may be estimated using Figs. 12a to 12d, also developed in Ref. 8. For a rotational ductility demand of 4 and a structure period equal to 0.06 N, where N is the number of stories, the maximum nominal shear stress at the critical section near the base can vary from $4\sqrt{f_c^{\dagger}}$ to $7.5\sqrt{f_c^{\dagger}}$. These values correspond to an earthquake intensity SI = 1.5 (SI_{ref.}) and yield level values ranging from 600,000 to 2,350,000 in.-kips.

Because the critical shears shown in Figs. 12a to 12d are often produced by ground motions that are not the same as those producing the critical ductility demand shown in Figs. 10a to 10d, a conservatism beyond that associated with using the largest value for each response quantity is implied when using both quantities and assuming that they occur simultaneously.

-36-

- 3. The maximum number of "fully-reversed cycles of large amplitude"^{*} that can be reasonably expected for strong ground motions of 20-second duration is six. The maximum total number of inelastic cycles, of small and large amplitude, for the same duration of strong ground motion, is ten. More than ninety-five percent of the cases considered had less than four fully reversed cycles of large amplitude. The corresponding number of inelastic cycles was eight.
- 4. The study relating to sequence of loading indicates that a realistic loading program must reflect the fact that in a large number of cases, the first maximum amplitude of deformation can occur fairly early in the response, with hardly any inelastic cycles preceding it.
- 5. A loading program incorporating conclusions (3) and (4) is shown in Fig. 27. The value of the maximum rotation in the hinging region, θ_{max} , and the maximum dynamic shears corresponding to a particular earthquake intensity and combinations of structure period and yield level may be obtained from Fig. 10 and Fig. 12 respectively. In application, laboratory tests using a loading history such as developed in this study will have the character of proof tests. A specimen that sustains such a loading program without significant

-37-

^{*}See page 24 and Fig. 16 for definition.

loss of strength can be said to be adequate with respect to strength and deformation capacity for the particular combination or range of values of the significant design variables represented by the loading program. These variables include earthquake intensity, structure period and yield level.

6. A loading characterized by moments, shears and rotations all occurring in phase, such as is commonly used in laboratory tests under slowly reversed loading, differs from typical dynamic inelastic response in respect to the variation of the shear force with time. Under dynamic conditions, the shears, which are more sensitive to the higher modes of response, change direction much more rapidly with time than the moment and rotation. It is believed that in this particular respect, the commonly used laboratory program represents a more severe loading condition when compared to typical dynamic response.

Because of the difference in character of the shear loading under dynamic conditions and that obtaining under commonly used quasi-static tests, some adjustment may be required in either the estimated dynamic shears or the shear capacities determined from tests using slowly reversed loading before a valid comparison can be made between these two quatities.

-38-

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The combined analytical and experimental program of which this investigation is a part has been supported in major part by the National Science Foundation through Grant No. ENV77-15333.

Any opinions, findings and conclusions expressed in this report are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of the National Science Foundation.

REFERENCES

- Applied Technology Council, <u>Recommended Comprehensive Seismic Design Provisions for Buildings</u>, Final Review Draft, ATC-3-05, Applied Technology Council, Palo Alto, California, January 7, 1977.
- Appendix A, Building Code Requirements for Reinforced Concrete (ACI 318-77), American Concrete Institute, P.O. Box 19150, Redford Station, Detroit, Michigan 48219.
- 3. The Behavior of Reinforced Concrete Buildings Subjected to the Chilean Earthquakes of May 1960," Advanced Engineering Bulletin No. 6, Portland Cement Association, Skokie, Illinois, 1963.
- Fintel, M., "Quake Lesson from Managua: Revise Concrete Building Design?" <u>Civil Engineering</u>, ASCE, August 1973, pp. 60-63.
- 5. Anonymous, "Managua, If Rebuilt on Same Site, Could Survive Temblor," Engineering News Record, December 6, 1973, p. 16.
- 6. Derecho, A.T., Fugelso, L.E. and Fintel, M., "Structural Walls in Earthquake-Resistant Buildings - Analytical Investigation, <u>Dynamic Analysis of Isolated Structural Walls</u> - INPUT MOTIONS," Final Report to the National Science Foundation, RANN, under Grant No. ENV74-14766, Portland Cement Association, November 1977.
- 7. Derecho, A.T., Ghosh, S.K., Iqbal, M., Freskakis, G.N. and Fintel, M., "Structural Walls in Earthquake-Resistant Buildings - Analytical Investigation, <u>Dynamic Analysis of</u> <u>Isolated Structural Walls</u> - PARAMETRIC STUDIES," Final Report to the National Science Foundation, RANN, under Grant No. ENV74-14766, March 1978.
- 8. Derecho, A.T., Iqbal, M., Ghosh, S.K. and Fintel, M., "Structural Walls in Earthquake-Resistant Buildings -Analytical Investigation, Dynamic Analysis of Isolated Structural Walls - DEVELOPMENT OF DESIGN PROCEDURE - DESIGN FORCE LEVELS," Final Report to the National Science Foundation, RANN, under Grant No. ENV74-14766, Portland Cement Association, (in preparation).
- 9. Oesterle, R.G., Fiorato, A.E., Johal, L.S., Carpenter, J.E., Russell, H.G. and Corley, W.G., "Earthquake-Resistant Structural Walls - Tests of Isolated Walls," Report to the National Science Foundation, RANN, Portland Cement Association, November 1976, 44 pp. (Appendix A, 38 pp., Appendix B, 233 pp.).

REFERENCES (cont'd.)

- 10. Popov, E.P. and Bertero, V.V., "On Seismic Behavior of Two R/C Structural Systems for Buildings," Paper No. 8, <u>Struc-</u> <u>tural and Geotechnical Mechanics</u>, W.J. Hall, Ed., Prentice-Hall, Inc. 1977.
- 11. Paulay, T., "Simulated Seismic Loading of Spandrel Beams," Proc. Paper No. 8365, Journal of the Structural Division, ASCE, Vol. 97, No. ST9, September 1971, pp. 2407-2419.
- 12. Barney, G.B., Shiu, K.N., Rabbat, B.G. and Fiorato, A.E., "Earthquake-Resistant Structural Walls - Tests of Couplings Beams," Progress Report to the National Science Foundation, Portland Cement Association, Skokie, Illinois, October 1976.
- Bouwkamp, J.G. and Kustu, O., "Experimental Study of Spandrel Wall Assemblies," Proc. Paper No. 89, Fifth World Conference on Earthquake Engineering, Rome 1973.
- 14. Higashi, Y., Okubo, M. and Iida, K., "Elasti-Plastic Behavior of Reinforced Concrete Beams with Spandrel Walls under Anti-symmetric Cyclic Loads," Proc. Paper No. 140, Fifth World Conference on Earthquake Engineering, Rome 1973.
- 15. Bertero, V.V., Popov, E.P. and Wang, T., "Hysteretic Behavior of Reinforced Concrete Flexural Members with Special Web Reinforcement," Report No. EERC 74-9, University of California, Berkeley, August 1974.
- 16. Popov, E.P., Bertero, V.V. and Krawinkler, H., "Cyclic Behavior of Three R.C. Flexural Members with High Shear," Report No. EERC 72-5, University of California, Berkeley, October 1972.
- 17. Hanson, N.W. and Conner, H.W., "Seismic Resistance of Reinforced Concrete Beam-Column Joints," Proc. Paper 5537, Journal of the Structural Division, ASCE, Vol. 93, No. ST5, October 1957, pp. 553-560.
- 18. Hanson, N.W., "Seismic Resistance of Concrete Frames with Grade 60 Reinforcement," Proc. Paper 8180, Journal of the Structural Division, ASCE, Vol. 97, No. ST6, June 1971, pp. 1685-1700.
- 19. Park, R. and Paulay, T., "Behavior of Reinforced Concrete External Beam-Column Joints under Cyclic Loading," Paper No. 88, Proceedings of the Fifth World Conference on Earthquake Engineering, Rome, 1973.
- 20. Megget, L.M. and Park, R., "Reinforced Concrete Exterior Beam-Column Joints under Seismic Loading," New Zealand Engineering (Wellington), Vol. 26, No. 11, Nov. 15, 1971, pp. 341-353.

REFERENCES (cont'd)

- 21. Renton, G.W., "The Behavior of Reinforced Concrete Beam-Column Joints under Cyclic Loading," M. Eng. Thesis, Univ. of Canterbury, Christ Church, New Zealand, 1972, 163 pp.
- 22. Uzumeri, S.M. and Seckin, M., "Behavior of Reinforced Concrete Beam-Column Joints Subjected to Slow Load Reversals," Publication No. 74-05, Department of Civil Engineering, University of Toronto, March 1974, 84 pp.
- 23. Paulay, T., and Spurr, D.D., "Frame-Shear Wall Assemblies Subjected Simulated Seismic Loading," Proc. Preprints Vol. 3, Sixth World Conference on Earthquake Engineering, New Delhi, India, Jan. 1977, pp. 3-221 to 3-226.
- 24. De Paiva, H.A.R. and Zaghlool, E.R.F., "Seismic Resistance of Flat Plate Corner Connections," Transactions, Canadian Society for Civil Engineering, Vol. 56, No. 9, September 1973, pp. I-X.
- 25. Carpenter, J.E., Kaar, P.H. and Corley, W.G., "Design of Ductile Flat Plate Structures to Resist Earthquakes," Proc. Paper No. 250, Fifth World Conference on Earthquake Engineering, Rome 1973.
- 26. Hawkins, N.M., "Slab-Column Connections Subjected to High Intensity Shears and Transferring Reversed Moments," Report SM 76-2, Department of Civil Engineering, University of Washington, Seattle, Washington, 1976, 150 pp.
- 27. Wight, J.K. and Sozen, M.A., "Shear Strength Decay in Reinforced Concrete Columns Subjected to Large Deflection Reversals," Report No. SRS 403, Department of Civil Engineering, University of Illinois, Urbana, August 1973, 290 pp.
- 28. Wight, J.K. and Kanoh, Y., "Shear Failure of Reinforced Concrete Columns Subjected to Cyclic Loading," Proc. Paper No. 94, Fifth World Conference on Earthquake Engineering, Rome 1973.
- 29. Hirosawa, M., Ozaki, M. and Wakabayashi, M., "Experimental Study on Large Models of Reinforced Concrete Columns," Proc. Paper No. 96, Fifth World Conference on Earthquake Engineering, Rome 1973.
- 30. Analysis of Strong Motion Earthquake Accelerograms, Vol. II, Corrected Accelerograms, Parts A, B, C, Reports EERL 72-79, California Institute of Technology, Earthquake Engineering Research Laboratory, 1972, 1973, 1974.

REFERENCES (cont'd.)

- 31. Gasparini, D., "SIMQKE: A Program for Artificial Motion Generation," Internal Study Report No. 3, Department of Civil Engineering, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, January 1975.
- 32. Kanaan, A.E. and Powell, G.H., "General Purpose Computer Program for Inelastic Dynamic Response of Plane Structures," (DRAIN-2D), Report No. EERC 73-6, Earthquake Engineering Research Center, University of California, Berkeley, April 1973.
- 33. Ghosh, S.K. and Derecho, A.T., "Supplementary Output Package for DRAIN-2D, General Purpose Computer Program for Dynamic Analysis of Plane Inelastic Structures," Supplement No. 1 to an Interim Report on the PCA Investigation, "Structural Walls in Earthquake-Resistant Structures," NSF-RANN Grant No. GI-43880, August 1975.
- 34. Noor, F.A., "Inelastic Behavior of Reinforced Concrete Frames," Magazine of Concrete Research, Vol. 28, No. 97, December 1976, pp. 209-224.
- 35. Bertero, V.V., Popov, E.P. and Wang, T.Y., "Seismic Design Implications of Hysteretic Behavior of Reinforced Concrete Elements under High Shear," Proceedings of the Review Meeting, U.S.-Japan Cooperative Research Program in Earthquake Engineering with Emphasis on Safety of School Buildings, August 18-20, 1975, Honolulu, Hawaii, The Japan Earthquake Engineering Promotion Society, Tokyo, Japan, 1976.
- 36. Oesterle, R.G., Aristizabal, J.D., Fiorato, A.E., Russell, H.G. and Corley, W.G., "Earthquake-Resistant Structural Walls - Tests of Isolated Walls - Phase II," Report to the National Science Foundation, RANN, Portland Cement Association, November 1977.
- 37. Bertero, V.V., "Experimental Studies Concerning Reinforced, Prestressed and Partially Prestressed Concrete Structures and Their Elements," Symposium on Resistance and Ultimate Deformability of Structures Acted On by Well Defined Repeated Loads sponsored by the International Association for Bridge and Structural Engineering, Lisbon, Portugal, 1973.
- 38. Bertero, V.V., "Identification of Research Needs for Improving Aseismic Design of Building Structures," Report No. EERC 75-27, University of California, Berkeley, September 1975.

TABLES AND FIGURES

APPENDIX A

This Appendix presents tables giving detailed data obtained from an examination of the 170 response histories considered in this investigation. The compiled data relate mainly to the number and sequence of large-amplitude cycles of response.

Also included is a sampling of the normalized rotation histories for 10-, 20-, 30- and 40-story isolated walls. The plots are for rotations of the nodes closest to the base in each of the lumped-mass models shown in Fig. 2 of the main body of this report. In each plot, the calculated nodal rotation has been divided by the corresponding rotation at first yield.

In Tables Al through A8, the following abbreviations are used under the column "Earthquake Input" to denote the corresponding input accelerograms:

EC-E - 1940 El Centro, E-W component (10-sec. duration) EC-E** - 20-second composite accelerogram based on EC-E EC-N - 1940 El Centro, N-S component (10-sec. duration) EC-N** - 20-second composite accelerogram based on EC-N P.D. - 1971 Pacoima Dam, Sl6E component (10-sec. duration) P.D.** - 20-second composite accelerogram based on P.D. H.O. - 1971 Holiday Orion, E-W component (10-sec. duration) H.O.** - 20-second composite accelerogram based on H.O. T - 1952 Taft, S69E component (10-sec. duration)

S1 - Artificially generated accelerogram

The intensity factor, f, shown in the tables, represents the ratio of the 5%-damped spectrum intensity of the particular input motion to the reference spectrum intensity, SI_{ref.}, i.e., the 5%-damped spectrum intensity - between periods 0.1 and 3.0 seconds - corresponding to the first 10 seconds of the N-S component of the 1940 El Centro record.

_	Parameter	. Value	_
=	STRUCTURAL		= :
	No. of Stories	10 - 40	
	Fundamental Period, T _l	0.5 - 3.0 sec.	
	Yield Level, M Y	16,950 - 339,000 kN·m (150,000 - 3,000,000 in-kips)	
	Yield Stiffness Ratio, r_{y}^{\star}	0.05 for most	
	Parameters characterizing Hysteretic M-θ Curve:* Unloading parameter, α Reloading parameter, β	0.10 for most 0.0 for most	
	Damping (stiffness-and mass- proportional)	0.05 of critical for initial first and second modes	
	Stiffness Variation with Height	Uniform for most	
	Strength Variation with Height	Uniform, except for adjustments to reflect effect of axial load -for most	
	Base Fixity Condition	Fully fixed	
	INPUT MOTION		
	Intensity	SI = 1.5 (SI _{ref.}) # for most	
	Frequency Characteristics ("peaking" and "broad band")	1940 El Centro, E-W 1940 El Centro, N-S 1971 Pacoima Dam, Sl6E 1971 Holiday Orion, E-W 1952 Taft, S69E Artificial Accelerogram, Sl	
	Duration	10 sec. for most 20 sec. for some	

Table 1 Values of Parameters Characterizing Isolated Wall Models

*See Figure 3.

#-SI (reference spectrum intensity)=area under 5% damped velocity response spectrum, between periods 0.1 and 3.0 seconds, corresponding to the first 10 seconds of the N-S component of the 1940 El Centro record.

	Comp	osition	Spectrum Intensi	ity, (in.)@	SIref.	SIref.
Basic Accelerogram	lst Part	2nd Part	First 10 Sec. ^{SI} 10	20-Second ^{SI} 20	SI10 x 1.50	<mark>SI20</mark> x 1.50
1940 El Centro, E-W	First 12.48 sec. as recorded*	From 0.98 to 8.5 se of record*	55.97	68.16	1.88	1.54
1940 El Centro, N-S	First 10.08 sec. as recorded*	From 2.90 sec. to 12.82 sec. of record*	70.15#	77.44	1.5	1.36
1971 Holiday Orion,E-W	First 10.08 sec. as recorded*	From 1.70 sec. to 11.62 sec. of record*	32.67	42.86	3.22	2.46
1971 Pacoima Dam, S16E	First 10.08 sec. as recorded*	From 2.42 sec. to 12.34 sec. of record*	177.25	206.07	0.594	0.511
⁺See Reference 0Based on 5%-d #Reference spe	; 30. lamped velocity spec sctrum intensity, SI	trum, for period range 0.] ref.	1 to 3.0 seconds.			

Table 2 Composition and Intensity of 20-Second Composite Accelerograms

ų

2 | \\\

Table 3a - Approximate Nominal Shearing Stresses for Different Wall Heights

Sections
Rectangular
Walls -
Structural
Isolated

Stress - $x \cdot \vec{F}_{c}$	f ^c = 4 f ^c = 6 ksi ksi	6.1 5.0	5.6 4.6	4.8 \$ 3.9 \$ (5.2) \$ (4.3) \$	4.8 \$ 3.9 \$ (5.4) \$ (4.4) \$			
Critical	at Base (kips)	932	1440	1745 (1908) \$	2315 (2592) \$			
Corresponding	Ratio p ⁶	0.05	.039	.021 \$ (.033) \$.018 (.033) \$			
Flexural	Level, # My xl0 ⁶ in-k	0.51	1.15	1.66 \$ (1.90) \$	2.45 (2.92) \$	ulating T _l .		
Effective chor area	$= 0.8h \ell_{w}$ $= (in.^{2})$	2420	4080	5810	7650	ksi in calcu		
on ions	Width & _w (ft)	25.2	35.4	43.2	49.8	ed = 3600		
Secti Dimens	Thickness h (in.)	10	12	14	16	. E _c assum		
Effective Moment of Inertia* Ie (in. ⁴)		23 x 10 ⁶	77 x 10 ⁶	163 x 10 ⁶	285 x 10 ⁶	ea of section		
	Fundamental Period, T ₁ (sec)	0.6	1.2	1.8	2.4	d on gross ar		
e VI VI	10	20	30	40	* I _e based			

 $\frac{1}{2}$ M_Y chosen to correspond to a rotational ductility demand of about 4 at the base under an earthquake intensity, $SI = 1.5 (SI_{ref.})$. See Fig.

@ Relative to an assumed "flange area" at each end of the section equal in length to 0.101_{W} . Thus, $\rho = A_{g}/h(0.1_{W})$, based on f_{y} = 60 ksi and $f_{c}^{2} = 4$ ksi.

\$ Correspond to ACI Code requirements for min. steel area in shear walls.

Note: 1 in. = 25.4 mm; 1 ft = 0.305 m; 1 kip = 4.45 kN

Table 3b - Approximate Nominal Shearing Stresses for Different Wall Heights

Isolated Structural Walls - Flanged Sections

]			ş (1
Shear - x/f	ft = c =	104	5.2	4.7	4.0	4.0 (4.2	
Critical Nomina Stress Shear $f' = 4$ at Base $f' = 4$ (kips) ksi			6.4	5.7	4.9	4.9 (5.1)	
			932	1083	1745	2315 (2414) \$	
Corres-	Rein- forcement	Ratio .p@	.071	.074	0.56	0.05 (.062) \$	
Flexural Yield Level, # M xl0 ⁶ in-k			0.51	1.15	1.66	2.45 (2.65) \$	
Bffective Shear Area = 0.8h t _w (in. ²)			2 32 0	3960	5670	7510	ting T ₁ .
ons	lange	Thickness (in.)	20	22	24	26	in calcula
Dimensi	μ.	Width (in.)	14	16	18	20	600 ksi
Section E Total Web Depth Thick-	ness (in.)	10	12	14	16	umed = 3	
	of Section (ft)	24.2	34.4	42.2	48.9	E, ass	
No. of Fundamental Effective Stories Period, T ₁ of Inertia* (sec) (in. ⁴)			23 x 10 ⁶	77 x 10 ⁶	163 x 10 ⁶	285 x 10 ⁶	ea of section.
			0.6	1.2	1.8	2.4	d on gross are
			10	20	30	40	* I base

 * M_Y chosen to correspond to a rotational ductility demand of about 4 at the base under an earthquake intensity, SI = 1.5 ($SI_{ref.}$). See Fig.

@ Relative to an assumed "flange area" at each end of the section.

\$ Correspond to ACI Code requirements for min. steel area in shear walls.

Note: 1 in. = 25.4 mm; 1 ft = 0.305 m; 1 kip = 4.45 kN

-47-b

1,500,000 **1.82** 1.99 **1.78** 2.00 Yield Level, M_{Y} (in-kips)** Corresponding to 20- and 10-Second Duration Input Motions 20-Story Isolated Structural Walls Average Ratios* of Maximum and Cumulative Response Values Average Ratio, R20/R10 Rotations at 1st floor level Deformation Measures Based on Nodal Rotations at 2nd Floor Level 1,000,000 2.14 I.97 2.11 **1.95** 500,000 2.18 2.33 2.32 2.18 Cum. Cyclic Rotational Ductility, $\Sigma\mu_{\text{rc2}}$ Cum. Cyclic Rotational Ductility, $\Sigma\mu_{rl}$ Deformation Measures Based on Nodal Cum. Rotational Energy, ^{ZA}rl Cum. Rotational Energy, $\Sigma A_{\rm T} 2$ Response Parameter ł Table 4

Fundamen-(sIref). 1.5 11 Usin four different accelerograms as input with SI tal period range: 0.8 to 2.4 sec. *

** l in-kip = 0.1129792 kilonewton.meter (kN.m)

-48-











Fig. 2 Lumped-Mass Models of Isolated Walls Investigated



Fig. 3a Unloading and Reloading Parameters α and β Characterizing Hysteretic Loop of Decreasing Stiffness Model



Fig. 3b Base Moment versus Nodal Rotation at First Floor Level - 20 Story Isolated Wall





Ten-Second Duration Normalized Accelerograms 4 • Fig.

SECONDS

β

0



MAX. VELOCITY (mm/sec)

-53-







Normalized 20-Second Duration Composite Accelerograms 9 Fig.



Relative Velocity Response Spectra for Normalized 20-Second Composite Accelerograms



Fig. 8 Nodal Rotation as a Measure of Total Rotation in Hinging Region



Nodal Rotation and Horizontal Displacement Histories of Nodes at Different Heights from Base - 20-Story Isolated Wall



Fig. 10a Critical Rotational Ductility Ratio at Base as a Function of Fundamental Period, T₁, and Yield Level, M_y 10-Story Isolated Structural Walls



Fig. 10b Critical Rotaional Ductility Ratio at Base as a Function of Fundamental Period, T₁, and Yield Level, M_y 20-Story Isolated Structural Walls


Fig. 10c Critical Rotational Ductility Ratio at Base as a Function of Fundamental Period, T₁, and Yield Level, M 30-Story Isolated Structural Walls



Fig. 10d Critical Rotational Ductility Ratio at Base as a Function of Fundamental Period, T₁, and Yield Level, M_y 40-Story Isolated Structural Walls





-62-



Fig. 12a Critical Base Shear, V_T^{dyn}, as a Function of Fundamental Period, T₁, and Yield Level, M_y 10-Story Isolated Walls



Fig. 12b Critical Base Shear, V_T^{dyn} , as a Function of Fundamental Period, T_1 , and Yield Level, M_y 20-Story Isolated Walls



Fig. 12c Critical Base Shear, V^{dyn}_T, as a Function of Fundamental Period, T₁, and Yield Level, M_y 30-Story Isolated Walls

-65-



Fig. 12d Critical Base Shear, V_T^{dyn} , as a Function of Fundamental Period, T_1 , and Yield Level, M_y 40-Story Isolated Walls



-67-



Fig. 14 Minimum Yield Level, M_y^{min} , Required at Base as a Function of Available Rotational Ductility Ratio, μ_r^0 , and Fundamental Period, $T_1 - 20$ -Story Isolated Walls



Fig. 15 Samples of Normalized Nodal Rotation History Plots







(b) "PARTIALLY REVERSED" CYCLE

Fig. 16 "Fully Reversed" and "Partially Reversed" Large Amplitude Cycles of Rotational Deformation Defined



-71-







Fig. 19 Distribution of Number of Peaks of Large Amplitude



Fig. 20 Distribution of Total Number of Inelastic Cycles



Fig. 21 Different Measures of Rotational Deformation in Hinging Region



Fig. 22 Typical Sequence of Loading Used In Testing Specimens Under Slowly Reversed Loads



-77-



Fig. 24 Number of Inelastic (B) Cycles Preceding First Large-Amplitude Response Peak (A), versus Ratio B/A











Representative Deformation History for Hinging Region of Isolated Walls











Fig. 28c Relative Variation with Time of Shear, Moment and Rotation in Hinging Region 20-Story Isolated Wall ł





APPENDIX A

This Appendix presents tables giving detailed data obtained from an examination of the 170 response histories considered in this investigation. The compiled data relate mainly to the number and sequence of large-amplitude cycles of response.

Also included is a sampling of the normalized rotation histories for 10-, 20-, 30- and 40-story isolated walls. The plots are for rotations of the nodes closest to the base in each of the lumped-mass models shown in Fig. 2 of the main body of this report. In each plot, the calculated nodal rotation has been divided by the corresponding rotation at first yield.

In Tables Al through A8, the following abbreviations are used under the column "Earthquake Input" to denote the corresponding input accelerograms:

EC-E - 1940 E1 Centro, E-W component (10-sec. duration) EC-E** - 20-second composite accelerogram based on EC-E EC-N - 1940 E1 Centro, N-S component (10-sec. duration) EC-N** - 20-second composite accelerogram based on EC-N P.D. - 1971 Pacoima Dam, S16E component (10-sec. duration) P.D.** - 20-second composite accelerogram based on P.D. H.O. - 1971 Holiday Orion, E-W component (10-sec. duration) H.O.** - 20-second composite accelerogram based on H.O. T - 1952 Taft, S69E component (10-sec. duration)

Sl - Artificially generated accelerogram

The intensity factor, f, shown in the tables, represents the ratio of the 5%-damped spectrum intensity of the particular

-86-

input motion to the reference spectrum intensity, SI_{ref.}, i.e., the 5%-damped spectrum intensity - between periods 0.1 and 3.0 seconds - corresponding to the first 10 seconds of the N-S component of the 1940 El Centro record.



Fig. A2





Fig. A6



Fig. A8





<u>Fig. Al2</u>







Fig. Al4



Fig. Al6






Fig. Al8





-97-





<u>Fig. A22</u>



Fig. A24



Fig. A26



Fig. A27



Fig. A28







-104-



<u>Fig. A36</u>



<u>Fig. A38</u>



Data on Number of Cycles Based on Nodal Rotations at Midheight of 1st Story 10-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions Table Al

Total No. Inelastic Cycles	キーこれこ らそこ ー ー タ こ ろ う ち ろ ろ っ っ っ っ っ っ っ っ っ っ っ っ っ っ っ っ っ
No. of cycles of Moderate Amplitude	жо%тчы оооооомноноо
CYCLES OF AMPLITUDE Partially Reversed Cycles	
No. of LARGE Fully Reversed Cycles	H H O H O H H M M M M M M M M M M M M M
of Peaks Moderate Amplitude #	ら エ て で て く く の て ぞう き の で て と
Total No. Large Amplitude ê	ち てててて ひでいう ひょうちょう ひん
Maximum Amplitude of Defor- mation (in terms of Correspdg Value at First Yield)	11 19.4 10.5 10.5 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9
Intensity Factor, f SI " f x SIref.	
Earthquake Input	Р. С. Е. Р. С. С. Р. С
Yield Level, My/106 (in-kips) ⁺	. 15 . 15 . 15 . 15 . 15 . 15 . 15 . 15
Fundamental Period, T ₁ (sec.)	00000000000000000000000000000000000000
Run No. ISW-	1003 1037 1037 1036 1036 1034 1038 1038 1038 1038 1038 1038 1038 1033 1033

- 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN·m.

"Large" amplitudes are those inelastic deformations between 0.75 - 1.0 of the corresponding maximum amplitude. ł

"Moderate" amplitudes are those between 0.50 - 0.75 of the corresponding maximum. I

"Fully reversed cycles" of large amplitude are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the maximum amplitude and the other - on reversal - between p.50 - 1.0 of the maximum. "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one large amplitude peak and the other 0.50 or less of the maximum. "Moderate amplitude cycles" are those with one peak value between 0.50 - 0.75 of the maximum while the other 1s 0.50 or less.

Cycles Based on Nodal Rotations at 1st Floor Level 20-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions Data on Number of Table A2

Total No.	Inelastic Cycles	25		-1	7	4		m		2	ى س	m	1½	3 ¹	4	37	
No. of cycles	of Moderate Amplitude	-%*	0	0	Г		0	7	0	0	m	1	0	1	щ	2%	
CYCLES OF AMPLITUDE	Partially Reversed Cycles		0	0	0	Ń	0	1	0	0	0		*	~~~	0	0	
No. of LARGE	Fully Reversed Cyclea	г	1			Ч	-1	0	Ч	5	7	1	-1	7	e		
of Peaks	Moderate Amplitude	7	н	٦	1	ц.	0	2	Ч	Ч	6	4	-	4	m	Q	
Total No.	Large Amplitude ê	7	-1	-1	2	4	7	1	Ч	ň	7	7	m	m	ഹ	-	1
Maximum Amplitude of Defor-	mation (in terms of Correspdg Value at First Vield)	9.6	12.6	12.3	5.8	5.9	7.9	4.6	6.0	7.6	3.3	5.3	1.4	4.0	3.0	4.4	
Intensity	factor, r SI " f x SIref.	1.5	1.5	1.5	.75	1.5	1.5	.75	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5	
	Barthquake Input	EC-E	P.D.	P.D.**	P.D.	EC-E	P.D.	P.D.	P.D.	н.о.	sı	H	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E**	
Yield	My/106 (in-kips)+	• 5	•5	• 5	• 5	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	
Fundamental	Period, T ₁ (sec.)	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	
Run	No. ISW-	н	116	156	169	. 7	115	117	121	135	143	149	4	ഹ	9	06	

I in.-kip = 0.113 kN·m.

"Large" amplitudes are those inelastic deformations between 0.75 - 1.0 of the corresponding maximum amplitude. 1

"Moderate" amplitudes are those between 0.50 - 0.75 of the corresponding maximum. 1

"Fully reversed cycles" of large amplitude are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the maximum amplitude and the other - on reversal - between 0.50 - 1.0 of the maximum "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one large amplitude peak and the other 0.50 or less of the maximum. "Moderate amplitude cycles" are those with one peak value between 0.50 - 0.75 of the maximum while the other is 0.50 or less. 计算机算

Data on Number of Cycles Based on Nodal Rotations at 1st Floor Level Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions 20-Story Isolated Table A2 (cont'd.)

CYCLES OF No. of AMPLITUDE No. of Cycles Total No.	of Inelastic Partially Moderate Cycles Reversed Amplitude Cycles
Fully Partia Reversed Revers Cycles Cycle	
Moderate Fi Amplitude # C.	c
Large Amplitudo ê /	
mation (in terms of Correspdg Value at First Yield)	
Factor, r	f x SIref.
-	Earthquake Input
	Level, My/106 (in-kips) ⁺
Fundamental	Period, T ₁ (sec.)
Run	No. ISW-

- 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN.m.

"Large" amplitudes are those inelastic deformations between 0.75 - 1.0 of the corresponding maximum amplitude. I œ

"Moderate" amplitudes are those between 0.50 - 0.75 of the corresponding maximum. \cdot ł

"Fully reversed cycles" of large amplitude are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the maximum amplitude and the other - on reversal - between 0.50 - 1.0 of the maximum "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one large amplitude peak and the other 0.50 or leas of the maximum. "Moderate amplitude cycles" are those with one peak value between 0.50 - 0.75 of the maximum while the other 1s 0.50 or less.

Data on Number of Cycles Based on Nodal Rotations at 1st Floor Level 20-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions Table A2 (cont'd.)

Total No.	Inelastic Cycles	m	e	m	2	2	1%	ഹ	m	7	m	e	m	9	ო	m
No. of cycles	of Moderate Amplitude	7	Ч	*			*	7	0	0	0	-1	~1	Ч	- -	1
CYCLES OF Amplitude	Partially Reversed Cycles	0	7	1%	0	0		5	Ч		ń	5	7	4	1	2
No. of LARGE	Fully Reversed Cyclos	2	0		1	Ч	0	-1	-	Ч	0	0	0	-1		0
of Peaks	Moderate Amplitude	5		m	5	7		ŝ	Ч	0	0	Ч	-	7	5	1
Total No.	Large Amplitudo 0	Э	2	ო	-1	7	2	ŝ	7	m	m	7	5	З	N	2
Maximum Amplitude of Defor-	mation (in terms of Correspdg Value at First Vield)	4.7	7.0	6.2	7.0	4.7	2.5	6.0	5.0	2.8	7.5	7.5	7.5	8.9	8.5	7.0
Intensity	factor, t SI = f X SIref.	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1. 5	1.0	.75	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5
	Barthquake Input	н.0.	EC-E	sı	P.D.	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E**	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E**	EC-E	EC-E
Yield	havar, My/106 (in-kips)+	.5	.5	ع	•5	.5	• 5	.5	۰. ۲	ۍ ۲	5	۰ ۲	· 2	۰ ت	. ب	.5
Fundamental	Period, T ₁ (sec.)	1,4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4
Run	No. ISW-	12	13	14	15	16	18	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	42	45

- l in.-kip = 0.113 kN·m.

+

"Large" amplitudes are those inelastic deformations between 0.75 - 1.0 of the corresponding maximum amplitude. 1

"Moderate" amplitudes are those between 0.50 - 0.75 of the corresponding maximum. 1

"Fully reversed cycles" of large amplitude are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the maximum amplitude and the other - on reversal - between 0.50 - 1.0 of the maximum "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one large amplitude peak and the other 0.50 or less of the maximum. "Moderate amplitude cycles" are those with one peak value between 0.50 - 0.75 of the maximum while the other is 0.50 or less.

Data on Number of Cycles Based on Nodal Rotations at 1st Floor Level 20-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions Table A2 (cont'd.)

Total No.	Inclastic Cycles	۳ 	7	7	2	2 ¹ / ₂	Ч	2	Ч	13	7	m	7	1^{1}_{2}	7	2
No. of cycles	of Moderate Amplitude	н	0	-%	-Ж	1^{χ}	0	Ч	0	-%	Ч		0	-‰		1
CYCLES OF AMPLITUDE	Partially Reversed Cycles	2		-%*	15	0	1	Ч	Ч	0	0	H	Ч	1		0
No. of LARGE	Fully Reversed Cycles	0	Ч		0	Ч	0	0	0	-1	Ч	Ч	Ч	0	0	
of Peaks	Moderate Amplitude #				Ч	m	Ч	1	Ч	7	m	7	1	Ч	7	г
Total No.	Large Amplitude @	7	m	7	2		Ч	7	Ţ	7		5	0	7		5
Maximum Amplitude of Defor-	mation (in terms of Correspdg Value at First Yield)	7.8	3.3	2.8	11.0	4.5	7.1	7.5	2.2	2.8	2.0	3.2	5.1	3.2	3.2	4.9
Intensity	factor, f SI = f x SI _{ref} .	1.5	1.5.	1.5	1.5	.75	l.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	.75	.75	1.5	.75	1.0	1.5
	Earthquake Input	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	P.D.	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	P.D.	sı	EC-E	P.D.	P.D.	P.D.
Yield	Level, My/106 (in-kips)+	.5	• 2	.5	ب	. ک	<u>،</u>	.	•5	ۍ •	•5	• 5	. 75	.75	.75	.75
Fundamental	Period, T ₁ (sec.)	1.4	1. 4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	l.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4
Run	No. ISW-	46	50	51	80	106	126	130	133	141	151	171	11	123	124	127

-1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN·m.

+

"Large" amplitudes are those inelastic deformations between 0.75 - 1.0 of the corresponding maximum amplitude. 1 æ

"Moderate" amplitudes are those between 0.50 - 0.75 of the corresponding maximum. 1

[&]quot;Fully reversed cycles" of large amplitude are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the maximum amplitude and the other - on reversal - between 0.50 - 1.0 of the maximum "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one large amplitude peak and the other 0.50 or less of the maximum. "Moderate amplitude cycles" are those with one peak value between 0.50 - 0.75 of the maximum while the other is 0.50 or less. # # # #

Cycles Based on Nodal Rotations at 1st Floor Level 20-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions Data on Number of Table A2 (cont'd.)

Total No.	Inelastic Cycles	5	7	Υ	4	4	2	m	7	4	*	$1\frac{1}{2}$	7	2	2½	m
No. of cycles	of Moderate Amplitude	ы	-%	1չ		Ч	0	7	Ч	0	0	-%•	~~~	Ч	1%	~~
CYCLES OF AMPLITUDE	Partially Reversed Cycles	0	-∦г	0	2	0	Ч	0	0	0	0	1	13	Ч	0	25
No. of LARGE	Fully Reversed Cycles	г	н	-1	Ч	e	Ч	1	Ч	ж.	~~~	0	0	0	-4	0
of Peaks	Moderate Amplitude #	m	7	4	2	S	0	m	m		-4	Ч	Ч	2	m	1
Total No.	Large Amplitude ê	7	2	-4	e	m	e		1	2^{j_2}	4	7	2	Ч	н	m
Maximum Amplitude of Dofor-	mation (in terms of Correspdg Value at First Vield)	4.5	3.3	2.5	3.9	1.9	3.0	4.5	4.5	1.0	1.1	3.2	3.5	6.4	3 . 5	2.9
Intensity	factor, r S1 = f X S1 ref.	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	.75	1.5	1.5	1.5	.75	1.5	1.5	1. 5	1.5	1.5	1.0
	Earthquake Input	.0.Н	sı	EC-E	E	sı	EC-E	P.D.	P.D.**	P.D.	EC-E	P.D.	P.D.**	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E
Yield	My/l06 (in-kips)+	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5	• 2	.5	. ک
Fundamental	Period, T ₁ (sec.)	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	l.4	1.4	2.0	2.0	2.0
Run	No. ISW-	128	131	132	146	165	10	113	148	152	20	114	162	31	34	35 .

+ - 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN·m.

"Large" amplitudes are those inelastic deformations between 0.75 - 1.0 of the corresponding maximum amplitude. 1 a

"Moderate" amplitudes are those between 0.50 - 0.75 of the corresponding maximum. \cdot ı

"Fully reversed cycles" of large amplitude are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the maximum amplitude and the other - on reversal - between 0.50 - 1.0 of the maximum "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one large amplitude peak and the other 0.50 or less of the maximum. "Moderate amplitude cycles" are those with one peak value between 0.50 - 0.75 of the maximum while the other is 0.50 or less. 8 11 11

Data on Number of Cycles Based on Nodal Rotations at 1st Floor Level 20-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions Table A2 (cont'd.)

Total No.	Inelastic Cycles	2			23	0	0	235	1%	7 3	1%		7				
No. of cycles	of Moderate Amplitude	Ч	0	0	~~	0	0	1%	0		-%"	~~		0	0		
CYCLES OF AMPLITUDE	Partially Reversed Cycles	0	0	٦	2	0	0	0	~~	0	0	44		0	0	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	
No. of Large	Fully Reversed Cyclos	1	Ч	Ö	0	0	0		-1	Ч	- -4	0	0			0	
of Peaks	Moderate Amplitude #	. 2	0		Ч	m	0	4	1	-4	5	Ч	7		0		
Total No.	Large Amplitude ê	2	2	7	m	<u>-</u>	-1		7	7	н	-1		Ţ	7		
Maximum Amplitude of Defor-	mation (in terms of Correspdg Value at First Yield)	4.2	2.9	5.0	3.0	1.4	2.7	2.7	2.9	3.6	2.3	1.8	2.5	3.1	2.9	1.7	
Intensity	factor, f SI = f X SIref.	1.5	.75	1.5	1.5	.75	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.0	.75	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	
	Barthquake Input	EC-E	н.о.	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	E	sı	н.о.	P.D.	Н.О.	EC-E	Н.О.	H.O.**	Н.О.	
Yield	ucvel, M _y /106 (in-kips) ⁺	• 5	• 5	.5	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.5	
Fundamental	<pre>Period, T1 (sec.)</pre>	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	
Run	.on ISW-	36	150	163	32	119	120	129	136	137	140	167	33	111	164	112	

 $- 1 \text{ in.-kip} = 0.113 \text{ kN} \cdot \text{m}.$

"Large" amplitudes are those inelastic deformations between 0.75 - 1.0 of the corresponding maximum amplitude. 5

"Moderate" amplitudes are those between 0.50 - 0.75 of the corresponding maximum. ;

"Fully reversed cycles" of large amplitude are complete cycles (+ and ~) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the maximum amplitude and the other - on reversal - between 0.50 - 1.0 of the maximum "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one large amplitude peak and the other 0.50 or leas of the maximum. "Moderate amplitude cycles" are those with one peak value between 0.50 - 0.75 of the maximum while the other is 0.50 or less.

Data on Number of Cycles Based on Nodal Rotations at 1st Floor Level 20-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions Table A2 (cont'd.)

Total No.	Inelastic Cycles	2%	н.		7	2^{1}_{2}	~-4	2	-%	1% 1	1	2 ¹ 2		7	2 ¹ 2	
No. of cycles	of Moderate Amplitude	-%1	0	~~~	0	0	-24	0	0	0	0	0	0		Н	
CYCLES OF AMPLITUDE	Partially Reversed Cycles	F	0	z	0	-%*	-%r	0	0	~~~	74	-%*	0	0	Ч	
No. of LARGE	Fully Reversed Cycles	1		0	7	7	0	7	74	Ч	-%	5	r1		Ч	
of Peaks	Moderate Amplitude #	2	r-H	2	7	2	m	2	Ĵ	2	1	Г	0	4	4	
Total No.	Large Amplitudo ê	2	7		2	4	7	m	1ځ	~1	2	4	m	25	e	
Maximum Amplitude of Defor-	mation (in terms of Correspdg Value at First Vield)	5.0	5.1	4.1	1.6	2.1	1.5	1.9	1.3	2.1	1.5	4.0	5.2	2.8	2.8	
Intensity	Factor, f SI = f X SIref.	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.0	1.5	1.5	1•5 1	1.5	1.5	1.5	.75	.75	.75	.75	
	Earthquake Input	EC-E	EC-E**	EC-E	EC-E	Sl	P.D.	н.О.	E	EC-E	EC-E**	sı	EC-E	EH	H	
Yield	Level, My/106 (in-kips)+	<u>،</u>	.	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	1.0	1.0	.25	.2	. 2	.25	
Fundamental	Feriod, T ₁ (sec.)	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.0	2.4	2.4	2.4	
Run	.on. ISW-	40	158	102	122	134	138	144	145	107	159	176	174	175	173	

— 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN·m.

"Large" amplitudes are those inelastic deformations between 0.75 ~ 1.0 of the corresponding maximum amplitude.

"Moderate" amplitudes are those between 0.50 - 0.75 of the corresponding maximum. ŧ

"Fully reversed cycles" of large amplitude are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the maximum amplitude and the other - on reversal - between 0.50 - 1.0 of the maximum "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one large amplitude peak and the other 0.50 or less of the maximum. "Moderate amplitude cycles" are those with one peak value between 0.50 - 0.75 of the maximum while the other is 0.50 or less.

at 1st Floor Level - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions on Nodal Rotations Structural Walls Cycles Based of 30-Story Isolated Data on Numbér A3 Table

Total No. Inclastic Cycles X T T N T T N T 33 ようろそ Ч of Moderate Amplitude No. of cycles 0 1 0 0 SOOFFOX SKA K STA Partially Reversed CYCLES OF AMPLITUDE Cycles rx r r ox oo v o o o o o o r x -201 No. of LARGE Fully Reversed Cyoles 1% 0 100 0 _ 1 0 000 0 -Amplitude Moderate Peaks H H O エクチョクエーション・ g Ø Total No. Amplitudo Large Correspdg Value at First Yield) Amplitude of Defor-mation (in terms of Maximum 1.8 7.0 5,8 3.9 5.5 4.0 2.3 2.6 5.2 4.2 6.3 3.3 4.2 1.4 6.7 4.1 3.2 د. si = x si_{ref.} Intensity Factor, f ഗ S പറപ S S 5 2 ບບບບ 5 5 5 S S Ч. _ ----i ----_ _ --.-i --. . 44 Earthquake EC-E EC-E EC-E EC-E EC-E Input P.D. P.D. EC-E P.D. EC-E P.D. EC-E EC-E P.D. P.D. P.D. P.D. P.D. in-kips)† 1.0 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.5 1.5 2.0 1.0 1.5 1.5 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.5 1.5 My/106 0 2.0 Level, 1.(Yield Fundamental **1** 1.4 2.0 2.0 2.0 2,0 2.0 2.0 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 **l.4** 2.4 (sec.) 4 4 Perlod, 2 -MST 3004 3013 3008 3014 3012 3015 3005 3017 3006 3018 3007 3019 3009 3010 3022 3023 3021 Run 3011 No.

+ - l in.-kip = 0.113 kN·m.

"Large" amplitudes are those inclastic deformations between 0.75 - 1.0 of the corresponding maximum amplitudo. ŧ æ

corresponding maximum. 0.75 of the ł "Moderate" amplitudes are those between 0.50 ł

"Fully reversed cycles" of large amplitude are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the maximum amplitude and the other - on reversal - between p.50 - 1.0 of the maximum. "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one large amplitude peak and the other 0.50 or less of the maximum. "Moderate amplitude cycles" are those with one peak value between 0.50 - 0.75 of the maximum while the other is 0.50 or less. ****

Data on Number of Cycles Based on Nodal Rotations at 2nd Floor Level 40-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions Table A4

No.																	
Total	Cycle	H	2	1%	23	Ч	2	2	8		7	~~~		2	г	1%	
No. of cycles	of Moderate Amplitude	0	0	0	~~~	0	-%	Ч	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
CYCLES OF AMPLITUDE	Partially Reversed Cycles	0	0	15	7	Ч	13	0	Н	0	0	*	0	0		-Ус	
No. of LARGE	Fully Reversed Cyclos		2	0	0	0	0	Г	1	Ч	7		Ч	7	0	н	
of Peaks	Moderate Amplitude	7	5	0		Г		2		0	7			0	0		
Total No.	Large Amplitudo 8	-	3	7	7		8	гı	7	2	7	2		4	3	7	
Maximum Amplitude of Dnfor-	mation (in terms of Correspdg Value at First Yield)	9.2	15.0	12.2	9.5	9.0	3.4	7.0	5.7	4.4	6.5	8.5	4.2	5.75	5.1	3.2	
Intensity	Factor, f SI ≠ f x SI _{rof} .	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	l.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	
	Earthquake Input	EC-E	sı	P.D.	EC-E	P.D.	EC-E	P.D.	EC-E	EC-E	$\mathbf{S1}$	P.D.	EC-E	$\mathbf{s1}$	P.D.	P.D.	
Yield	Level, My/l06 (in-kips)+	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0	2.5	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5	2.0	
Fundamental	Period, T ₁ (sec.)	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	
Bun	NO.	4008	4021	4034	4001	4039	4006	4045	4051	4016	4022	4043	4015	4024	4040	4046	

+ - 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN.m.

"Large" amplitudes are those inelastic deformations between 0.75 - 1.0 of the corresponding maximum amplitude. 1 a

"Moderate" amplitudes are those between 0.50 - 0.75 of the corresponding maximum. •

"Fully reversed cycles" of large amplitude are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the maximum amplitude and the other - on reversal - between p.50 - 1.0 of the maximum. "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one large amplitude peak and the other 0.50 or less of the maximum. "Moderate amplitude cycles" are those with one peak value between 0.50 - 0.75 of the maximum while the other is 0.50 or less.

-117-

Cycles Based on Nodal Rotations at 2nd Floor Level 40-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions Data on Number of Table A4 (cont'd.)

Total No.	Inclastic Cycles	2		2	-%*		2	~~~		2	4	2		*		0		Ч	
No. of cycles	of Moderate Amplitude	*	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	-4	0	0	-%° .	-%*	0	0	0	-%	
CYCLES OF AMPLITUDE	Partially Reversed Cycles	ار لا	0	0	*	0		0	0	F{	0		-%~	0	0	0	0	*	
No. of LARGE	Fully Reversed Cycles	Ţ	1	7	0			0	Ч	0	1		0	1	1	0		0	
of Peaks	Moderate Amplitude	2	7	1	0	0	0		IJ	N	7	-1	-1	r-4	-1	2	-1	Ч	
Total No.	Large Amplitude ê	2	-1	m	7	m	m		7			2	1	7	Ч	н	7	Ч	
Maximum Amplitude of Dcfor-	mation (in terms of Correspdg Value at First Yield)	5.6	5.7	6.3	6.3	6.5	6.8	3.8	5.4	3.2	4.6	6.7	3.3	5.8	5.4	2.1	3.3	2.0	
Intensity	Factor, f SI = f x SIref.	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1. 5	1.5	1. 5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1. 5	1.5	1.5	1.5	
	Earthquake Input	EC-E	EC-E	sı	P.D.	EC-E	s1	P.D.	EC-E	P.D.	EC-E	Sl	P.D.	EC-E	\mathbf{SI}	P.D.	EC-E	P.D.	
Yield	Level, My/106 (in-kips)+	2.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0	
Fundamental	Period, T ₁ (sec.)	2.0	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	
Run	No. ISW-	4050	4009	4023	4042	4020	4027	4041	4004	4047	4012	4031	4038	4005	4032	4037	4003	4048	

 $1 \text{ in.-kip} = 0.113 \text{ kN}\cdot\text{m}.$ ŧ +

æ

"Large" amplitudes are those inelastic deformations between 0.75 - 1.0 of the corresponding maximum amplitude. 1

"Moderate" amplitudes are those between 0.50 - 0.75 of the corresponding maximum. ł

"Fully reversed cycles" of large amplitude are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the maximum amplitude and the other - on reversal - between p.50 - 1.0 of the maximum. "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one large amplitude peak and the other 0.50 or less of the maximum. "Moderate amplitude cycles" are those with one peak value between 0.50 - 0.75 of the maximum while the other is 0.50 or less.

Data on Number and Relative Magnitude of Cycles Preceding First Large-Amplitude Response Peak Based on Nodal Rotations at Midheight of 1st Story Table A5

10-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motion

Run	Fundamental	Yield Level.		Intensity Factor, f	A First Large Amplitude Response	Time to	(B) Amplitude of Largest Displst.	(1)	No. of Pcaks between	No. of	B cycles ^a
No.	Period, T ₁	My/106	Earthquake	I I S	Peak \$ (in terms of	Maximum Displst. Amolitude	Preceding Max. A (in terms		0-sec. and T _{inxd} of	Fully	Partially
-MSI	(sec.)	(in-kips) +	Input	i * alref.	value at Pirst Yield)	Tmxd	of Yield Amplitude)	Ð	amplitude to (B) #	Reversed Cycles	Reversed Cycles
EUUL	u C	י ע ר	4 - C4	ר ז	4 T	y ر	3 8	0.40		C	~
) u i -) u •	*0 * 1			91 0	- r-	- C	%
TO3/	n 	CT.	<i>к</i> .и.	·	- 0 • 1 T	0.c	,	0 1 0	-1	5	(n .
1010	0.5	.50	EC-E	1. 5	2 9*	1.6	1.6	0.55			0
1036	0.5	.50	P.D.	1.5	1.7*	3.4	0.8	0.47		0	-X r
1007	0.5	1.0	EC-E	1.5	2.1	2.1	1.0	0.47	-7/4	0	0
1024	0.5	1.0	sı	1.5	1.9*	4.1	1.6	0.84	7	2	0
1031	0.5	1.0	P.D.	1.5	1.3	8.6	6.0	0.69	13	0	0
1004	0.8	.15	EC-E	1.5	8.0*	3.4	4.5	0.56		0	
1038	0.8	.15	P.D.	1.5	10.5	3.0	0.9	60.0	-%1	0	0
1009	0.8	.50	EC-E	1.5	1.1*	2.7	0.97	0.88	-¥r	0	0
1035	0.8	.50	P.D.	1.5	2.0	3.4	1.0	0.50	24	0	0
1002	1.4	.15	EC-E	1.5	6.1*	3.5	2.0	0.33		0	
1034	1.4	.15	P.D.	1.5	5.6	3.1	0.4	0.07	-%	0	0
1041	1.4	.20	EC-E	1.5	3.9	3.6	1.0	0.26	1%	-%	0
1040	1.4	.25	EC-E	1.5	1.9	3.2	0.6	0.32	-%*	0	0
1033	1.4	.50	P.D.	1.5	1.5	3.7	0.8	0.53	~~	0	0
								and a state of the second			

- 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN-m.

5 - equal to calculated maximum response peak, except where noted.

f - with amplitude equal to at least 0.85 of that of (B).

"Fully reversed cycles" are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the amplitude of (B) and the other - on reversal - between 0.50 - 1.0 of (B). "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one peak amplitude equal to at least 0.75 of (B) and the other 0.50 or less of (B).

* ~ 75% of maximum amplitude of deformation.

Data on Number and Relative Magnitude of Cycles Preceding First Large-Amplitude Response Peak Based on Nodal Rotations at lst Floor Level Table A6

20-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions

B) cycles ⁴	Partially Reversed Cycles	ж	-7/4	Ч	0	l	0	ž	-%	0	-}r	0	0	0	0	0
No. of (Fully Reversed Cycles	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	-%~	0	-//4	-%*	н
No. of Pcaks between	u-sec. and T _{mxd} of amplitude to () (-1	Ч	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	r-1	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	Ч		7			1^{λ}_{λ}	7	2	2
(Ø	0.62	0.09	0.10	0.09	0.31	0.09	0.43	0.67	0.79	0.73	0.86	0.40	0.25	0.33	0.66
(B) Amplitude of Laryest Displst.	Preceding Max. A (in termu of Yield Amplitude)	5.8	1.1	1.2	0.4	1.4	0.6	2.0	4.0	4.8	2.4	3.6	0.4	1.0	1.0	2.9
Time to	Maximum Displet. Amplitude Tmxd	3.4	3.0	3.0	3.0	2.4	3.0	3.5	3.6	6.8	2.4	1.3	2.3	2.3	2.3	2.9
First Large Amplitudo Response	Pcak \$ (in terms of Correspuy. Value at First Yield)	9.4*	12.6	12.3**	4.4*	4.5*	7.0*	4.6	6.0	6.1	3.3	4.2*	1.0*	4.0	3.0	4.4*
Intenuity Factor, f	si " f x Si _{rcf} .	1.5	1.5	1.5	.75	1.5	1.5	.75	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5
	Earthguake Input	EC-E	P.D.	P.D.	P.D.	EC-E	P.D.	P.D.	P.D.	н.о.	Sl	E4	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-N
Yield Level,	My/106 (in-kips) ⁺	. 5	.5	• 5	• J	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0
Fundamental	Period, T ₁ (sec.)	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8
Run	No.		116	156	169	7	115	117	121	135	143	149	4	ى	9	90

- 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN·m.

equal to calculated maximum response peak, except where noted. 1

with amplitude equal to at least 0.85 of that of (B)1

æ

- "Fully reversed cycles" are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 1.0 of the amplitude of (B) and the other on reversal between 0.50 1.0 of (D). "Partially revarged cycles" are cycles with one peak amplitude equal to at least 0.75 of (E) and the other 0.50 or less of (D). 1
- 75% of maximum amplitude of deformation. ı

20 sec. duration input motions. 1

Data on Number and Relative Magnitude of Cycles Preceding First Large-Amplitude Response Peak Based on Nodal Rotations Table A6 (cont'd.)

at 1st Floor Level

20-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions

B) cycles ⁶	Partially Reversed Cycles	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	-%	- / ~	44	0	0	-%	0
No. of (Fully Reversed Cycles	0	24	**	7⊱	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
No. of Pcaks between	and T _{mxd} of amplitude	-%*	~	7	15	-%	7	~~~	~~~	1%	1	1	~~~	1%	r +	44
(B)	(\mathbb{B})	0.22	0.24	0.25	0.27	0.09	0.29	0.32	0.11	0.38	0.50	0.43	0.56	0.45	0.58	0.62
(B) Amplitude of Largest Displet.	Preceding Max. A (in terms of Yield Amplitude)	6.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	0.4	0.8	6.0	0.3	0.8	1.5	1.8	0.5	0.5	1.4	0.8
Time to	Maximum Displst. Amplitude Tmxd	4.1	2.3	2.3	2.3	3.0	2.3	2.3	3.0	2.3	2.3	3.5	3.2	3.1	2.4	2.8
Rirst Large Amplitude Response	Peāk \$ (in terms of Correspdg. Value at First Yield)	4.1**	4.1	4.0	3.7	4.5*	2.8	2.8	2.8**	2.1*	3.0	4.2	*6.0	1.1	2.4**	1.3**
Intensity Factor, f	si " f x 51ref.	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	.75	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	.75
	Earthquake Input	L	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	P.D.	EC-E	EC-N	P.D.	EC-E	EC-N	P.D.	EC-E	EC-E	EC-N	P.D.
Yield Level,	M _y /106 (in-kips) ⁺	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5
Fundamental	<pre>Period, T1 (sec.)</pre>	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8
Run	No. ISW-	91	103	104	105	110	125	153	157	2	m	109	139	142	147	154

- 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN.m.

- equal to calculated maximum response peak, except where noted.

i - with amplitude equal to at least 0.85 of that of (B).

"Fully reversed cycles" are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the amplitude of (B) and the other - on reversal - between 0.50 - 1.0 of (D). "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one peak amplitude equal to at least 0.75 of (B) and the other 0.50 or less of (D). ı

* - 75% of maximum amplitude of deformation.

Table A6 (cont'd.) Data on Numb

20-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions Data on Number and Relative Magnitude of Cycles Preceding First Large-Amplitude Response Peak Based on Nodal Rotations at 1st Floor Level

 												_	-			
B) Cycles ^A	Partially Reversed Cycles	-%	-%	0	0	-%*	-76	-%r	-%	0	-%~	-%	-X~	-‰	~~~	76
No. of (Fully Reversed Cycles	. 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
No. of Pcaks between	0-sec. and T _{mxd} of amplitude to (B) #		Ч	-‰	×1	Ч		Ч	1%	-¥c	-1					r-4
	(0.56	0.43	0.06	0.07	0.51	0.40	0.30	0.20	0.25	0.43	0.43	0.43	0.42	0.49	0.46
() Amplitude of Largest Displst.	Preceding Max. A (in terms of Yield Amplitude)	2.0	3.0	0.4	0.5	2.4	1.0	1.8	1.0	0.7	3.2	3.2	3.2	3.1	4.2	3.2
Time to	Maximum Displst. Amplitude Tmxd	5.5	3.5	2.1	3.0	3 . 5	3.5	3.6	3.5	а . З	3 . 5	3.5	3.5	3.6	3.4	3.5
(A) First Large Amplitude Response	Peak \$ (in terms of Correspdg. Value at First Yield)	3.6*	7.0	6.2	7.0	4.7	2.5	6.0**	5.0	2.8	7.5	7.5	7.5	7.4**	8.5	7.0
Intensity Factor, f	si = f x blref.	1.5	1.5	1. 5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.0	.75	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5
	Earthquake Input	н.о.	EC-E	sl	P.D.	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E
Yield Level.	My/106 (in-kips) ⁺	.5	.5	5.	• 5	• 2	.	.5	• 5	ۍ •	.	ۍ ۲	.	• 5	. 5	.5
Fundamental	Period, T ₁ (sec.)	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4
Run	No. ISW-	12	13	14	15	16	18	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	42	45

+ - 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN·m.

\$ - equal to calculated maximum response peak, except where noted.

- with amplitude equal to at least 0.85 of that of (B)

- "Fully reversed cycles" are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 1.0 of the amplitude of (B) and the other on reversal between 0.50 1.0 of (D). "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one peak amplitude equal to at least 0.75 of (E) and the other 0.50 or less of (D). 1
- * 75% of maximum amplitude of deformation.

Data on Number and Relative Magnitude of Cycles Preceding First Large-Amplitude Response Peak Based on Nodal Rotations Table A6 (cont'd.)

at 1st Floor Level

20-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions

- 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN·m. +

equal to calculated maximum response peak, except where noted. , ŝ

with amplitude equal to at least 0.85 of that of (B)ł

- "Fully reversed cycles" are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 1.0 of the amplitude of (B) and the other on reversal between 0.50 1.0 of (D). "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one peak amplitude equal to at least 0.75 of (D) and the other 0.50 or less of (B). ł a
- 75% of maximum amplitude of deformation. t

20 sec. duration input motions. ** -

Data on Number and Relative Magnitude of Cycles Preceding First Large-Amplitude Response Peak Based on Nodal Rotations Table A6 (cont'd.)

at 1st Floor Level

20-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions

					_		_		_							
B) cycles ^A	Partially Reversed Çycles	*	0	1^{λ}	م ير	-%4	0	40	-%	0	0	0	*	~~~	~~~	-%*
No. of (Fully Reversed Cycles	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
No. of Praks between	u-sec. and Tmxd of amplitude to (b) #	1	ж	ო	7	Ч	Ч	Ч		*	ж	*		1	-1	1
B	(\mathbb{B})	0.38	0.10	0.64	0.59	0.53	0.24	0.58	0.60	0.48	0.52	0.28	0.29	0.48	0.54	0.38
(B) Amplitude of Largest Displst.	Preceding Max. A (in terms of Yield Amplitude)	1.6	0.3	1.6	2.3	1.0	0.72	2.6	2.7	0.5	0.5	6.0	1.0	3.1	1.9	1.0
Time to	Maximum Displst. Amplitude Tmxd	6.3	1.8	6.1	4.3	2.4	3.3	3.9	3.8	3.8	3.2	3.7	3.7	3.5	3.4	3.4
(A) First Large Amplitude Response	Peak \$ (in terms of Correspdg. Value at First Yield)	4.2*	3.1*	2.5	3.9	1.9	3.0	4.5	4.5**	1.0	*96.	3.2	3.5**	6.4	3.5	2.6*
Intensity Factor, f	si = f x siref.	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	.75	1.5	1.5	1.5	.75	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.0
	Earthquake Input	н.о.	sı	EC-E	H	s1	EC-E	P.D.	P.D.	P.D.	EC-E	P.D.	P.D.	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E
Yield Level,	M _y /106 (in-kips)+	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5	<u>،</u>	.5	۰ ۲
Fundamental	<pre>Period, T₁ (sec.)</pre>	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4	2.0	2.0	2.0
		- m		2	9	പ	0	ر	8	5	0	4	5		4	2

+ - 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN·m.

\$ - equal to calculated maximum response peak, except where noted.

f - with amplitude equal to at least 0.85 of that of (B)

æ

"Fully reversed cycles" are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the amplitude of (B) and the other - on reversal - between 0.50 - 1.0 of (D). "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one peak amplitude equal to at least 0.75 of (D) and the other 0.50 or less of (D). 4

* - 75% of maximum amplitude of deformation.

Data on Number and Relative Magnitude of Cycles Preceding First Table A6 (cont'd.)

Large-Amplitude Response Peak Based on Nodal Rotations at 1st Floor Level

- 10-sec. Duration Input Motions 20-Story Isolated Structural Walls

B) cycles ⁴	Partially Reversed Cycles	· –	0	77	-//7	0	0	0	*	0	ž	0	0	l	0	0
No. of	Fully Reversed Cycles	н	-%*	0	0	0	7	1	0	Ч	0	0	m	0	ж	0
No. of Pcaks between	and Tmxd of amplitude to () ()	ε	1,4	1	-1	m	ъ	1		Ч		-%*	9		1%	1
(a)	Ø	0.76	0.45	0.49	0.40	0.57	0.41	0.56	0.52	0.63	0.57	0.49	0.48	0.48	0.45	0.47
(H) Amplitude of Largest Displst.	Preceding Max. A (in terms of Yield Amplitude)	3.2	1.0	2.5	1.0	0.8	1.1	1.5	1.5	2.0	1.3	6.0	1.2	1.1	1.0	0.8
Time to	Maximum Displst. Amplitude Tmxd	7.5	6.6	3.5	3.3	9.4	9.5	3.1	3.1	6.4	4.0	7.5	9.5	6.6	6.6	7.5
Rirst Large Amplitude Response	Peāk \$ (in terms of Correspdg. Value at First Yield)	4.2	2.2*	5.0	2.5*	1.4	2.7	2.7	2.9	3.2*	2.3	1.8	2.5	2.3	2.2**	1.7
Intensity Factor, f	si " f x Siref.	1.5	.75	1.5	1.5	.75	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.0	.75	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5
	Earthquake Input	EC-E	н.о.	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	H	$\mathbf{S1}$	н.о.	P.D.	н.О.	EC-E	Н.О.	Н.О.	н.о.
Yield Level,	M _y /106 (in-kips)+	.5	. ت	. د.	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.5
Fundamental	Period, T ₁ (sec.)	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0
Run	No. ISW-	36	150	163	32	119	120	129	136	137	140	167	33	111	164	112

- 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN.m.

+

\$ - equal to calculated maximum response peak, except where noted.

i - with amplitude equal to at least 0.85 of that of B.

- "Fully reversed cycles" are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 1.0 of the amplitude of (B) and the other on reversal between 0.50 1.0 of (D). "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one peak amplitude equal to at least 0.75 of (D) and the other 0.50 or less of (D). 1 œ
- 75% of maximum amplitude of deformation.
- ** 20 sec. duration input motions.

Data on Number and Relative Magnitude of Cycles Preceding First Large-Amplitude Response Peak Based on Nodal Rotations Table A6 (cont'd.)

Amplitude Response Peak Based on N at 1st Floor Level

20-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions

B cycles ⁶	Partially Reversed Cycles	0	~~	*	0	~~	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0
No. of (Fully Reversed Cycles	0	0	0	0	0	Ч	-%	Ч	0	0		0	0	I	*
No. of Peaks between	and Tmxd of amplitude to () ()	T		, 1	~~	r-4	7	Ч	7	~~	~~~		~~~		7	П
æ	(\mathbb{A})	0.44	0.57	0.27	0.47	0.76	0.80	0.81	0.69	0.38	0.33		0.06	0,05	0.68	0.62
(B) Amplitude of Largest Displst.	Preceding Max. A (in terms of Yield Amplitude)	2.2	2.9	1.1	0.7	1.3	1,2	1.3	0.9	0.8	0.5		0.2	0.2	1.9	1.3
Time to	Maximum Displst. Amplitude Tmxd	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	2.9	8.3	5.8	3.5	3.5	3.5		1.9	2.1	4.5	2.2
(A) First Large Amplitude Response	Pcak \$ (in terms of Correspdg. Value at First Yield)	5.0	5.1**	4.1	1.5*	1.7*	1.5	1.6*	1.3	2.1	1.5**		3.2*	4.4*	2.8	2.1*
Intensity Factor, f	si " f x Si _{ref} .	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.0	1. 5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5		.75	.75	.75	.75
-	Barthquake Input	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	EC-E	sı	P.D.	н.о.	T	EC-E	EC-E	-	S1	EC-E	E	Т
Yield Level,	M _y /106 (in-kips)+	• 5	.5	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	.75	1.0		.25	.2	.2	.25
Fundamental	Period, T ₁ (sec.)	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4		2.0	2.4	2.4	2.4
Run	No. ISW-	40	158	102	122	134	138	144	145	107	159		176	174	175	173

+ - 1 in.-kip = 0.113 kN·m.

\$ - equal to calculated maximum response peak, except where noted.

f - with amplitude equal to at least 0.85 of that of (B).

- "Fully reversed cycles" are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 ~ 1.0 of the amplitude of (B) and the other on reversal between 0.50 1.0 of (D). "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one peak amplitude equal to at least 0.75 of (D) and the other 0.50 or less of (D). 1 æ
- 75% of maximum amplitude of deformation.
- ** 20 sec. duration input motions.

Data on Number and Relative Magnitude of Cycles Preceding First Large-Amplitude Response Peak Based on Nodal Rotations at 1st Floor Level 30-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions Table A7

Run	Fundamental	Yield Level.		Intensity Factor, f	Rirst Large Amplitude Response	Time to	(B) Amplitude of Largest Displist.	B	No. of Pcaks between	No. of	B) Cycles ⁶
No.	Period, T ₁	My/106	Earthquake	SI = f x SI	Peak \$ (in terms of Corresodo.	Maximum Displst. Amplitude	Preceding Max. A (in terms	9	u-sec. and T _{mxd} of	Fully	Partially
-MSI	(sec.)	(in-kips) +	Input		Value at First Yield)	Tmxd	of Yield Amplitude))	amplitude to B #	Reversed Cycles	Reversed Cycles
3004	1.4	1.0	EC-E	1.5	4.2	3.5	2.1	0.50		0	н
3013	1.4	1.0	P.D.	1.5	6.3	3.1	0.4	0.06	-%	0	0
3008	1.4	1.5	EC-E	1.5	3.3	3.5	6.0	0.27	-%	0	0
3014	1.4	1.5	P.D.	1.5	5.8*	3.1	0.3	0.05	-Xr	0	0
3012	1.4	2.0	EC-E	1.5	3.9	з . З	0.9	0.23	~~	0	0
3015	1.4	2.0	P.D.	1.5	3.9*	3.1	0.3	0.08	-%	0	0
3005	2.0	1.0	EC-E	1.5	6.7	3.4	4.0	0.60		0	-%"
3017	2.0	1.0	P.D.	1.5	3.7*	3.1	0.2	0.05	~~~	0	0
3006	2.0	1.5	EC-E	1.5	3.8*	3.4	1.2	0.32		0	20
3018	2.0	1.5	P.D.	1.5	1.7*	3.1	0.13	0.08	~~~	0	0
3007	2.0	2.0	EC-E	1.5	2.6	9.6	1.6	0.62	S	m	0
3019	2.0	2.0	P.D.	1.5	1.8	4.0	0.9	0.49	-%~	0	0
3009	2.4	1.0	EC-E	1.5	5.0*	2.1	0.2	0.04	-%	0	0
3021	2.4	1.0	P.D.	1.5	4.2	8.7	2.4	0.58	7		0
3010	2.4	1.5	EC-E	1.5	5.2	3.5	0.8	0.25	-%'	0	0
3022	2.4	1.5	P.D.	l.5	1.4	8.3	0.9	0.64	*	0	0
3011	2.4	2.0	EC-E	1.5	3.2	3 . 5	0.8	0.25	~~~	0	0
3023	2.4	2.0	P.D.	1.5	1.3	8.3	0.9	0.69	7c	0	0
	Y		F				1				

 $1 \text{ in.-kip} = 0.113 \text{ kN}\cdot\text{m}.$ t

equal to calculated maximum response peak, except where noted. ı ŝ

with amplitude equal to at least 0.85 of that of (B)ŧ

- "Fully reversed cyclos" are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 1.0 of the amplitude of (Dand the other on reversal between 0.50 1.0 of (D). "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one peak amplitude equal to at least 0.75 of (D) and the other 0.50 or less of (D). 1 a
- 75% of maximum amplitude of deformation. ł

Data on Number and Relative Magnitude of Cycles Preceding First Large-Amplitude Response Peak Based on Nodal Rotations at 2nd Floor Level Table A8

40-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions

		Yield			(A) First Large		(B) Amplitudo	B	No. of Dote	NO. OF	a solon (
Run	Fundamental	Level,		Intensity Factor, f	Amplitude Response	Time to	ot Largest Displst.		between	10.00	e states
No.	Period, T.	M./106	Earthquake	sI =	Peak \$ (in terms of	Max1mum Displst.	Preceding Max. A	(and Tmxd		
-MSI	(sec.)	y (in-kips) ⁺	Input	f x SIref.	Correspdg. Value at First Yield)	Amplitude T mxd	(in terms of Yield Amplitude)	Ð	or amplitude to B #	ruily Reversed Cycles	rar tiaily Reversed Cycles
000		C 	н Ц С Ц	1 5	9.2	3.5	6.1	0.66	1	0	-Ke
4021		0.1	2] - 2]	1.5	15.0	2.1	1.2	0.08	Ч	0	×
4034		1.0	P.D.	1.5	12.2	3.1	0.8	0.06	74	0	0
4001	1.4	1.5	EC-E	1.5	9.5	3.5	4.5	0.47		0	ж
4039	1.4	1.5	P.D.	1.5	0.6	3.1	0.5	0.06	26	0	0
4006	1.4	2.0	EC-E	1.5	3.4	3.5	1.4	0.41		0	-%
4045	1.4	2.0	P.D.	1.5	7.0	3.1	0.4	0.06	-%	0	0
4051	1.4	2.5	EC-E	1. 5	5.7	3.5	1.6	0.28	7	0	r-i
4016	2.0	1.0	EC-E	1.5	4.4	2.1	0.2	0.05	-Ж	0	0
4022	2.0	1.0	sı	1.5	6.5	2.1	0.3	0.05	-%*	0	0
4043	2.0	1.0	P.D.	1.5	8.0*	3.0	0.4	0.05	ж	0	0
4015	2.0	1.5	EC-E	1.5	4.2	3.5	2.7	0.64	Ч	0	-//4
4024	2.0	1.5	sı	1.5	5.75	2.1	0.3	0.05	-%	0	0
4040	2.0	1.5	P.D.	1.5	4.8*	3.1	0.2	0.04	~~~	0	0
4046	2.0	2.0	P.D.	1.5	3.2	3.1	0.2	0.06	-%	0	0
		•									

- l in.-kip = 0.113 kN-m.

+

5 - equal to calculated maximum response peak, except where noted.

- with amplitude equal to at least 0.85 of that of (B).

- "Fully reversed cycles" are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 1.0 of the amplitude of (B) and the other on reversal between 0.50 1.0 of (B). "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one peak amplitude equal to at least 0.75 of (B) and the other 0.50 or less of (B). ł
- 751 of maximum amplitude of deformation.

Data on Number and Relative Magnitude of Cycles Preceding First Large-Amplitude Response Peak Based on Nodal Rotations Table A8 (cont'd.)

at 2nd Floor Level

40-Story Isolated Structural Walls - 10-sec. Duration Input Motions

Cycles ^µ	artially eversed Cycles	×	0	0	0	0	0	0	م لا	0	0	ት	-//4	0	-%"	-/~	0	0	
No. of B	Fully Reversed Cycles	0	0	0	0	0	0	 -1	0		0	0	0	0	0	-%-	0	-//2	
No. of Pcaks between	0-sec. and Tmxd of amplitude to (B)		7,F	-%	-%	-%~			1	7	-%		1	7K	Г	7	-/~	7	
B	8	0.52	0.04	0.06	0.10	0.05	0.07	0.66	0.56	0.63	0.02	0.48	0.73	0.03	0.33	0.67	0.30	0.55	
() Amplitude of Largest Displst.	Preceding Max. A (in terms of Yield Amplitude)	2.9	0.2	0.4	0.5	0.3	0.4	2.5	3.0	2.0	0.1	3.2	2.4	0.2	1.8	l.4	1.0	1.1	
Time to	Maximum Displst. Amplitude Tmxd	3.4	2.1	2.1	3.1	2.1	2.5	8.8	3.8	8.3	2.2	4.2	8.5	2.2	4.2	8.9	2.1	8.9	
First Large Amplitude Response	Peak \$ (in terms of Correspdg. Value at First Yield)	5.6	5.7	6.3*	5.2*	6.0*	5.8*	3.8	5.4	3.2	4.6	6.7	3.3	5.8	5.4	2.1	3.3	2.0	
Intensity Factor f	f x SIref.	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	l.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5	
	Earthquako Input	EC-E	EC-E	sı	P.D.	EC-E	sı	P.D.	EC-E	P.D.	EC-E	SI	P.D.	EC-E	S1	P.D.	EC-E	P.D.	
Yield Level.	M _y /106 (in-kips)+	2.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0	
Fundamental	Period, T ₁ (sec.)	2.0	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	
Run	No. ISW-	4050	4009	4023	4042	4020	4027	4041	4004	4047	4012	4031	4038	4005	4032	4037	4003	4048	

l in.-kip = 0.113 ки.т. ł

equal to calculated maximum response peak, except where noted. 1 ŝ

with amplitude equal to at least 0.85 of that of (B)ł

"Fully reversed cycles" are complete cycles (+ and -) with at least one peak value between 0.75 - 1.0 of the amplitude of (B) and the other - on reversal - between 0.50 - 1.0 of (B). "Partially reversed cycles" are cycles with one peak amplitude equal to at least 0.75 of (D) and the other 0.50 or less of (B). Т പ

75% of maximum amplitude of deformation. ł *